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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-4501 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4501

Fax: 603-27M827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.tth.gov

October 15, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into an amendment to an existing contract with JSI Research & Training
Institute, Inc. dba Community Health Institute (VC #161611), Bow, NH. to provide training and
technical assistance to the Department's Home Visiting Programs by exercising a contract
renewal option, and increasing the price limitation by $335,000 from $425,000 to $760,000 and
by extending the completion date from June 30. 2025 to June 30, 2026, effective upon Governor
and Council approval. 54% Federal Funds. 46% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on April 10, 2024, Item #9.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025 and are
anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902010-58960000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DERI OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF FAMILY HEALTH AND NUTRITION,
HOME VISITING FORMULA GNT 100% GENERAL FUNDS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Amount

2024 102-500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

90005896 $175,000 $0 $175,000

2025 102-500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

90005896 $250,000 $0 $250,000

Subtotal $425,000 $0 $425,000
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05-95-90-902010-70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF FAMILY HEALTH AND
NUTRITION. COMMUNITY COLLABORATION 100% GENERAL FUNDS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Amount

2025 102-500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

90070471 $0 $105,000 $105,000

2026 102-500731

Contracts

for

Program
Services

90070471 $0 $50;000 $50,000

Subtotal $0 $155,000 $755,000

05-95-90-90

HUMAN SV

HOME visn

State

Fiscal

Year

2010-58960000

S, HHS; PUBLIC
riNG FORMULA

Class/Account

HEALTH Ah

HEALTH DP

GNT 100%

Class Title

ID SOCIAL

BUREAU

=EDERAL F

Job

Number

SERVICES

OF FAMILY

IJNDS

Current

Modified

Budget

, DEPT OF 1

HEALTH AN!

Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

-lEALTH AND

9 NUTRITION,

Revised

Modified

Amount

2026 074-500589

Grants for

Pub Asst

and Rel

90083211 $0 $180,000 $180,000

Subtotal $0 $180,00C $780,000

TOTAL $425,000 $335,000 $760,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is to allow the Contractor to continue providing training and
technical assistance to the Department's Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting
Program and to expand these services to the Comprehensive Family Support Services (CFSS)
Home Visiting Program by supporting the eight (8) statewide implementing agencies.

The Contractor will provide a broad range of home visiting and family support professional
development support sen/ices to the local implementing agencies, Including training opportunities
for staff. In addition, the Contractor will provide training, consultation, and technical assistance
directly to Department staff to support program quality improvement and oversight methods. The
Contractor will also.update marketing materials to align with current Department capability and
messaging.

The CFSS Home Visting Program is designed to provide preventative services such as
household management, budgeting techniques, positive parenting techniques, child development
screenings, case management, resources and referrals.

Approximately 115 home visiting staff will be served through June 30, 2026.
I

The Department will continue to monitor contracted services through:
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•  Quarterly reports required of the Contractor;

•  Quarterly meetings with the Contractor; and

•  Monthly review of invoices and supporting fiscal documents.

As referenced In Exhibit A of the original agreement, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Departrhent
Is exercising its option to renew services for one (1) year of the four (4) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, local implementing agencies
will lack professional development resources to ensure staff are well-trained and the Department
will not have resources to assess gaps in services provided to communities statewide, which may
leave families at risk for negative maternal and child health outcomes.

Area served; Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 93.870, FAIN X10MC50315

In the event that the Federal Funds, become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

uA

Lori Weaver \J
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Home Visiting MIECHV Training and Technical Assistance contract is by and
between the State of New Hampshire,department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department")
and JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. dba Community Health.Institute ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on April 10, 2024 (Item # 9), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained

in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2026

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$760,000

3. Modify Exhibit 8, Scope of Services; Section 1.1., to read:

1.1. The Contractor must provide training and technical assistance to the Department's
Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting (MIECHV) and Comprehensive Family
Support Services Home Visiting (CFSS) programs, including their participating agencies.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services; Section 1.4 (lead-in statement only), to read:

1.4. The Contractor must provide a broad range ofhome visiting and family support professional
development opportunities to local implementing agencies (LIA) staff, the Department's
MIECHV Program staff, and CFSS Program staff including, but riot limited to:

5. Modify Exhibit 8, Scope of Services; Section 1.5 (lead-in statement only), to read:

1.5. The Contractor must provide services to increase the capacity of home visiting staff to
provide high-quality home visiting services by:

6. Modify Exhibit 8, Scope of Services; Section 1.8.1, to read:

1.8.1. The Contractor must provide technical assistance to support the MIECHV and
CFSS programs' continuous quality improvement (CQI)-activities through meeting
coordination and the development of visual aids and data visualizations as
requested.

7. Modify Exhibit 8. Scope of Services; Subsection 1.8., Technical Assistance, by adding Paragraph
1.8.3., to read:

1.8.3. The Contractor must provide technical assistance to the Department's MIECHV and
CFSS program staff to identify tools and training to enhance CQI capacity.

8. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services; Section 1.9.2, to read:

1.9.2. MIECHV program and CFSS program

1.9.2.1. The Contractor must assist the Department's MIECHV and CFSS program
staff with the development of outreach and educational materials, which
include, but are not limited to:

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. dba Community Health Institute A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials.

RFA-2024-DPHS.10-HOMEV-01-A01 PagelofS pate 10/21/2024
v7.12.23
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1.9.2.1.1. Updating the existing promotional materials in both digital
and print formats.

1.9.2.1.2. Developing materials to promote home visiting programs,
such as f5rovider FAQ sheets, rack cards, and posters.

1.9.2.1.3 Developing 2-3 home visiting-specific social media posts per
month, to share on the DPHS Facebook account.

1.9.2.1.4. Developing materials to support current and upcoming CGI
project activities as guided by the Home Visiting Program
manager or designee.

,  1.9.2.1.5. Developing and/or sharing environmental health promotional
information and resource toolkits in collaboration with the NH
Environmental Public health Tracking Program.

1.9.2.1.6. Providing mitigation materials to home visiting staff.

1.9.2.1.7. A rhonthly e-newsletter for MIECHV LIA and CFSS staff
promoting educational opportunities and program
information.

1.9.2.1.9. Other outreach and educational materials as identified

through the training plan, training evaluations, and/or In
response to emerging programmatic needs.

1.9.2.1.10. Opportunities for coordination across home visiting
programs, such as a Community of Practice.

1.9.2.2. The Contractor must assist the Department's CFSS staff with technical
assistance to support implementation of Newborn Navigation, including
but not limited to:

1.9.2.2.1 Technical assistance to support and enhance health care
provider referral pathways.

1.9.2.2.2 Technical Assistance as requested by the Department's
CFSS staff to develop data visuals, reports and materials.

9. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1 24% Federal Funds from the Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant
Program, as awarded on August 29, 2023, by the Health Resources and Services
Administration (HRSA), Home Visiting Formula Grant, ALN 93.870, FAIN
X10MC50315.

1.2 76% General Funds.

10. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 2, by adding Subsection 2.2 to read:

2.2 The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

11. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit C-1 Budget through Exhibit C-5, Budget - Amendment #1.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. dba Community Health Institute A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

RFA-2024-DPHS-10-HOMEV-01-A01 Paqe2of5 Date ^0/21/2024
v7.12.23
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12. Add Exhibit C-3, Budget - Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

13. Add Exhibit C-4, Budget - Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

14. Add Exhibit C-5, Budget-Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. dba Community Health Institute A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

RFA-20
v7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

10/21/2024

Date

0«uSlfln«d by:

Name: lain watt

Director - dphs

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. dba Community
Health Institute

10/21/2024

Date

-Signtd by:

r9g»6D<r<tc8«ifl..

Name: Katherine Robert
Title:

Di rector

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. dba Community Health Institute

RFA-2024-DPHS-10-HOMEV-01-A01 Page 4 of 5
V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OoeuSig(>«d by:

10/22/2024 I
Date N a m"^ y anno

Title:
Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: " (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. dba Community Health Institute A-S-1.3

RFA-2024-DPHS-10.HOMEV-01-A01 Page 5 of 5
V. 7.12.23
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute

Budget Request for: Home Visiting MIECHV Training and Technical Assistance

Budget Period July 1. 2025 through June 30, 2026

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) Up to 26.2% of all direct costs LESS equipment and subrecipient contracts (actual. 20.14%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $59,021
2. Flings Benefits $27,958

3. Consultants $5,000

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $0

5.(a) Supplies • Educational $3,000

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy SO

5.(d) Supplies - Medical so

5.(e) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel $2,000

7. Software $1,500

8. (a) Other • Marlceting/ Communications • $2,000

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $26,000

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0

Other (please specify) $11,000

Other (please specify) SO

Other (please specify) SO

Other (please specify) SO

9. Subrecipient Contracts $6,501

Total Direct Costs $143,980

Total Indirect Costs S36.020
'

TOTAL SI 80.000

RFA-2024-DPHS-10-HOMEV-01-A01 Contractor Initials;

tie
Date:

10/21/2024
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute
Budget Request for: Home Visiting MIECHV Training and Technical Assistance

Budget Period Date of G&C approval through June 30. 2025
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) Up to 26.2% of all. direct costs LESS equipment and subrecipient contracts

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $33,814

2. Fringe Benefits $16,018

3. Consultants $2,000

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and

Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $1,800

5.(b) Supplies - Lab. $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office • $0

6. Travel $1,200

7. Software $3,000.

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $1,200

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $15,000

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0

Other (please specify) $6,000

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $4,000

Total Direct Costs $84,032

Total Indirect Costs $20,968

TOTAL $105,000

RFA-2024-DPHS-10-HOMEV-01-A01 Contractor Initials:

Initial

& 10/21/2024
Date:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute

Budget Request for: Horne Visiting MitCHV training and Technical Assistance

Budget Period July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) Up to 26.2% of all direct costs LESS equipment and subrecipient contracts (actual. 20.14%)

• Line Item- • • Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $16,612
2. Fringe Benefits $7,869-
3. Consultants - $1,000

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational. 5950
5.(b) Supplies - Lab so

5,(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical ■ $0

5.(e) Supplies Office . $0

6. Travel $500

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $700

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $7,300
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0

Other (please specify) $3,500
Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $1,500
Total Direct Costs $39,931

Total Indirect Costs $10,069

TOTAL $50,000

RFA-2024-OPH5-10-HOMEV-01-A01 Contractor Initials:

InHI

& 10/21/2024
Date:
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scahlan, Secreiar>' of State of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that JSl RESEARCH & TRAINING

INSTITUTE, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on Fcbruarj' 17,

2016. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 739507

Certificate Number: 0006558250

%

A

Hi

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.xcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 30th day of January A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secrctar\' of State
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE .

I, David M. Scanlan,Sccrctar>' of Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify' that COMMUNITY l-IEALTH

INSTITUTE is a New l lampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 12, 2016. 1 further

certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofTicc have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Business ID: 742096

Certificate Number: 0006558251

lb

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOE,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.ved

the Seal of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 30th day of January A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Sccretar\' of Slate
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Antoriia Powell , hereby certify that:
(Name-ofthe.elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 'I am.a duly elected"Glerk/Secretarv/Officer of JSI 'Research and training Institute. Inc. dba Gommunitv Health
institute.

(GorpdrationA-LC Name)-

2. the following is a true copy of a vpte taken at-a meeting of the-Board of Directors/sha.rehpiders, duly calied and
held on January 11. 2024. af which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date) - - .

yptED:.that iKatie'Robert ^ (may list rnore.than one persor})
^•(Name and Titje of Contract Signatory)'

Ts duly authorized on'behalf of JSI Research .and Training Institute. Inc. dba Community Health Institute to enter
(Name of Corporation/LLC)

into cpritracte pr agreerpents withthe-^ate of New Hampshire and any of its agencies ordepartment.s ar:id further is
aUhprized to execute any ai^ all dpcuments,, agreerrients and other ihstnjmentSi and any arnendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto,-vyhicb rnay mhis/herjudgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this
vote.

3. I hereby certify thatisaid vote has' not been amended or repealed and, rerriains in full force :and effect as of the.
date'bf thexqntract/contract amendrrient'to which thisperiificate is attached, This authority was valid thirty (W)
days'prior tq and rernaihs validjfpr ̂ 'irty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
'thafit is.understoodthat.-the&atVdrNew'Hampshire yyill relyqnithis certificate-as evidenceTha'tthe persor:)(s)'listed
above currently occupy the ppsition(s)''indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corppratibri, To'the
rexterit that there are ar^ limits ori the .aut.hority-of any listed individual to bind the cprporatign in contracts with the
^State pf;New Harqpshire, ajl such I'imitatjons arepxpressiy stated herein.,

Ahtom ,
Dated'^QCt 15 2024 Antonia Powcll.loct 15.?.024 05:36 EDI)•  .SIgnature of Elected Officer

Name: Antqnia Powejl
title: Assistant Clerk/Secretary



Docusign Envelope ID: 4064F531-A2B8-4D08-ABFC-36FE1B4BFF79

ACORtf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/OD/YYYY)

10/18/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poiicy(ies) must have ADDITiONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

AHT Insurance, A Baldwin Risk Partner
458 South Ave
Whitman MA 02382

License#; CA#0658748

CONTACT
NAME:

TaWo F.tv 800-648-4807 no>; 781-447-7230
E44AIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A: Federal Insurance Company 20281

INSURED JOHNSNO-01

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
John Snow. Inc.
World Education, Inc.
44 Farnsworth Street
Boston MA 02210-1206

INSURER B: ACE American Insurance Companv 22667

INSURER c: Great Northern Insurance Compa 20303

INSURER 0: Chubb Indemnity Insurance Comp 12777

INSURER E ;

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 509190321 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

^  lAOOLISUBR] POLICY EPF ( POLICYEXPTYPE OF INSURANCE tNSD WVD POLICY NUMBER tMMfPD/YYYY^ <MM/DDfirYYY>
INSR

LTR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

CLAIMS^OE OCCUR

35873320 10/1/2024 10/1/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE

DAmACETO REMTEB
PREMISES (Ea occurrence!

MEO EXP (Any one parson)

PERSONAL 4 AOV INJURY

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO
JECTPOLICY □ B LOC

OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

S 1.000.000

$ 1.000.000

S 10.000

$1,000,000

S 2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

73546634 9/9/2024 10/1/2025 COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accidenll $1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $1,000,000
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY '
HIRED .
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per acddeni) $1,000,000
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddenll S 1.000,000

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

79861066 10/1/2024 10/1/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $20,000,000

AGGREGATE $20,000,000

RETENTION $ ft
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUOED?
(Mandatory In NH)
II yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS tjelow

71733182 10/1/2024 10/1/2025 PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

I $ n

□ N/A
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000
Errors & Omissions/Cybef D96621772 10/1/2024 10/1/2025 Per Occurence

Aggregate
5,000,000
5,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORO 101, Additional Rematlis Scttedule, may be attached if more space is required)
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© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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JSI Research and Training

Mission Statement

JSI Research and Training Institute was incorporated in 1987 as a 501®3 non-profit
organization in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Our mission is to alleviate public
health problems both in the United States and in developing countries around the world
through applied research, technical assistance and training. JSI maintains offices in Boston,
Massachusetts; Washington, D.C.; Denver, Colorado and Concord, New i-Iampshire; as well
as seven overseas offices in developing nations. Since its inception, JSI has successfully
completed more than 400 contracts in the health and human scr\'icc fields.

Community Health Institute

Mission Statenient

The Communit)' Health Institute's mission is to support and strengthen New Hampshire's
health care system by providing coordinated information dissemination and technical
assistance resources to health care providers, managers, planners, and policy makers,
statewide. Our success translates into improved access to qualit)' health and social services
for all New Hampshire residents.
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OKANT THORNTON LIR

75 State Street. 13lh Flow

Bostwi, MA, 02109

0 *1 617 723 7900

F  ♦1 617 723 3640

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of JSI Research and Training
Institute, Inc. and affiliates (the "Organization"), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as of September 30, 2023, and the related
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Organization as of September 30,
2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with

auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of America (US GAAS).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be Independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the .
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted In the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to
evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going concern
for one year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.

GT.COM Greni Thornton LLP is a U.S. m«mt>er firm of Grant Thornton intamatlonal LtO (GTiL). GTiL and each of its member firms are
separate iegai entities and are not a worldwide partnership.
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Grant Thornton

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to. obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS wili always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a

substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we: '

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, ori a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial,
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to

, continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit
findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Boston, Massachusetts

June 27, 2024
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30, 2023

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables for program work

Field advances - program
Employee advances

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Goodwill

Right-of-use assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accrued vacation

Lease liabilities

Advances for program work

Total current liabilities

Long-term lease liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$  198,258,786

79,831,673

540,895

176,555

51,056,340

18.430,741

348,294,990

6,567,204

727,375

41,961,185

3,041,817

$ 400,592,571

$  59,658,105

4,651,012

7,444,243

176,180,268

247,933,628

34:822,121

282,755,749

117,036,234

800,588

117,836,822

$ 400,592,571

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

5
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended September 30, 2023

Net assets without donor restrictions

Support and revenue

Public support

Global Fund

Government grants and contracts

U.S. Government

Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Other grants and contracts

Contributed net assets (see Note 3)
Program income

Contributions

Net assets released from restriction

In-kind project contributions
Other Income

Interest income

Total support and revenue

Expenses

Program services

International programs

Domestic programs

Total program services

Supporting services

Management and general

Fundraising

Total supporting services

Other expenses

Income taxes

Unallowable costs

V

Total expenses

Change in net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions, net of net asset releases of S24,497

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

S 415,379,336

354.586,872

20,585,288

105,338,023

291,248

166,488

181,469

24,497

862,161

140,980

1,776,163

899,332,525

760,016,335

74,001,338

834,017,673

52,945,220

21,731

52,966,951

4,422,777

1,219,515

892,626,916

6,705,609

49,921

6,755,530

111,081,292

S  117,836,822

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

6
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates
*

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended September 30, 2023

Program Services Supporting Services

International Domestic Management

Programs Programs Total and General Fundraising Total

Commodities $  376,216,569 $ $  376,216,569 $ $ $  376,216,569

Freight costs 41,410,482 - 41,410,482 - - 41.410,482

Salaries 53,235,995 39,228,072 92,464,067 34,488,778 2,509 126,955,354

Consultants 21,890,660 .  8,678,182 30,568,842 4,125,306 - 34,694,148

Cooperating national salaries 65,219,485 1,581,774 66,801,259 875,014 - 67,676,273

Travel 28,174,875 2,037,035 30,211,910 1,576,128 - 31,788,038

Allowance and training 12,953,687 324,885 13,278,572 568,850 - 13,847,422

Subgrants 46,756,192 583,286 47,339,478 . 158,030. - 47,497,508

Subcontracts 59,210,032 10,157,643 69,367,675 75,150 - 69,442,825

Equipment, material and supplies 12,714,542 716,540 13,431,082 1,356,069 - 14,787,151

Other costs 33,972,645 10,595,081 44,567,726 7,427,317 19,222 52,014,265

Information technology 161,498 - 161,498 873,821 - 1,035,319

Non-commodity 308,387 - 308,387 - - 308,387

Quality assurance 38,931 - 38,931 - • 38,931

Equipment over $5,000 5,730,415 35,838 5,766,253 - - 5,766,253

VAT 593,976 63,002 656,978 - - 656,978

In-kind project expenses 1,427,964 - 1,427,964 - - 1,427,964

Depreciation - - - 1,420,757 - 1,420,757

Total expense $  760,016,335 $  74,001,338 $  834,017,673 $  52,945,220 $  21,731 $  886,984,624

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

7
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended September 30, 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

.provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

(increase) decrease in operating assets:

Receivables for program work

Field advances - program

Employee advances

Inventory •

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

_Right-of-use assets
Other assets

increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accrued vacation

Advances for program work

Lease liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Acquisition of The Manoff Group, net of cash acquired

Contributed net assets, net of cash received

Acquisition of property and equipment

Net cash used in operating activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental cash flow information:

Cash paid during the year for Income taxes

$  6,755,530

1,420.757

(16,248,188)

(171,747)

54.735

43,038,776

(10.049,422)

4,326,258

(1,892,358)

(17,336,680)

1,883,560

55,147,460

(4,103.657)

62,825,024

(403,359)

2.039,409

(1,846,608)

(210,558)

62,614,466

135,644,320

$  198,258,786

$  936,475

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

8
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. ("R&T") was incorporated in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
on April 11,1979. R&T is a global nonprofit dedicated to Improving lives around the world through greater
health, education, and socio-economic equity for individuals and communities. Current funding is principally
from the United States Agency for International Development ("USAID") and the United States Department
of Health and Human Services ("DHHS").

R&T is the sole member of The Partnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc. ("PFSCM"), InSupply
Health Limited ("InSupply"), and the sole shareholder of John Snow. Inc. ("JSI"), Community Economics
Corporation ("CEC"), and'John Snow India Private Limited ("JSIPL"). R&T was also the sole member of
World .Education, Inc. ("WEI") through June 30, 2023, at which time WEI was merged into R&T and no
longer exists as a separate legal entity. R&T is accorded with such powers as are typical for a sole member
including the power of appointment and removal of the affiliates' board of trustees, the right to approve
amendments to the bylaws and certificate of incorporation, and the right to approve any merger,
consolidation, dissolution or transfer of substantial assets of affiliates.

The Partnership for Supply Chain Management (PFSCM) was incorporated on February 14, 2005 under
the laws of Massachusetts. PFSCM began operations on October 1, 2005. PFSCM's project teams
collaborate with institutions that are among the most trusted names in international public health and,
development, each offering unique capabilities that ensure that high-quality ARV drugs, HIV tests, and other
supplies for treating HiV/AIDS are available to the people, patients, clinicians, laboratory technicians, and
others who need them. PFSCM supply chain projects and initiatives strengthen, develop, and manage
secure, reliable and cost-effective provision of health products to low- and middle-income countries.
PFSCM deliveries to 90+ countries globally via a supply chain that is transparent, accountable, and tailored
to specific country needs.

InSupply Health Limited ("InSupply") is domiciled in Kenya where it is incorporated under the Kenyan
Companies Act, 2015 as a non-profit organization limited by guarantee. The principal activity is providing
supply ctiain advisory with customized guidance on supply chain management and design.

JSI is an international management-consulting firm organized on May 29, 1975, in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts. JSI provides research and consulting services to public health programs, health care and
service sectors. Its mission is to work with clients to improve the quality of their operations. Current funding
is principally with the United States Agency for International Development.

Community Economics Corporation (CEC) is a wholly owned subsidiary of JSI and is engaged in providing
information, consulting, and problem-solving services, advice and management. All of CEC's revenue is
received from related parties.

John Snow India Private Limited (JSIPL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of JSI and is engaged in
implementing public health programs at scale to support India's efforts to improve maternal, newborn and
child health and nutrition, strengthen immunization systems, reduce the spread of communicable diseases,
and build capacity for managing complex supply chains.

The Manoff Group, Inc. ("TMG") was incorporated December 1, 1988 in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts. TMG provides social and behavior change, strategic program assistance and social
marketing services that include: in depth consumer research to better understand and be responsive to
client needs; effective and creative social and behavior strategies and communication plans to promote
new products, better health and nutrition practices, and increased utilization of program services; skills
development training in social marketing; and assistance to strengthen linkage between the government
and private sector firms working in social and behavior change programming, marketing and
communication. Through September 30, 2022, JSI was a 40% shareholder of TMG which was reflected on
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONtlNUED
w

September 30, 2023

the financials utilizing the equity method of accounting for investments. Effective October 1, 2022, JSI
purchased the remaining share of TMG's stock. As a result, TMG's FY23 activity is included In the current
year's consolidated financials.

WEI was founded in 1951 and incorporated in the state of New Jersey. Working in partnership with
community, national, and international agencies in Asia. Africa, and the United States, it provides
professional assistance in the design and implementation of non-formal adult education programs. These
programs integrate functional education vyith relevant problem-solving aspects of individual growth and
national development such as health, nutrition, family planning, childcare, refugee education, agricultural
practices, literacy, and income generation. WEI's financial data is consolidated utilizing its fiscal year-end
financial statements, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023. As noted above, WEI was merged into.
R&T on June'^30, 2023 and no longer exists as a separate legal entity.

R&T and its affiliates, excluding JSI, CEC, JSIPL, and TMG, are tax exempt organizations under 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code ("IRC"), while InSuppiy is subject to Kenyan income tax based on the Kenyan
Income Tax Act.

NOTE 2 . SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of R&T, WEI,. JSI, InSuppiy, CEC, TMG, JSIPL.
and PFSCM, (collectively referred to as the "Organization"). All intercompany balances and trarisactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis
of accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
("U.S. GAAP"). Net assets, revenues, and expenses are classified based on the existence or absence of
donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and the changes thereof are
classified and reported as follows;

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions-Contributions, grants, and income whose use by the Organization
has been limited by donors or grantors to a specific time period or purpose.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,
actual results may differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturity dates of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair
value because of the short maturities of those financial instruments. Total cash held in foreign accounts
was $17,294,403 at September 30, 2023.

10
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED .

September 30, 2023

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment owned by the organization are reported on the basis of cost less accumulated
depreciation. Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method calculated to extinguish the book value of the respective assets
over their estimated useful lives {five - 27.5 years) of the related assets. Property and equipment purchased
with grant funds where ownership rests with the donor is expensed at the time of purchase and is returned
to the donor or disposed of in accordance with the terms of the grant and/or donor permissions at the
conclusion of the grant period.

Revenue Recognition

Grants and Contacts

The majority of the Organization's revenues are derived from contracts, cooperative agreements, and
grants with The Global Fund to Fight AIDS Tuberculosis and Malaria (the Global Fund), and
U.S. government agencies, primarily USAID and the United States Department of Health and Human

" Services.

The Organization recognizes revenue from external organizations for services provided under exchange
and non-exchange grants and contracts. Unconditional grants, contracts, and contributions are recognized
as revenue in the period received in the appropriate net asset category, based on the existence or absence
of donor-imposed restrictions. If donor-imposed restrictions are present, the associated revenue is reported
as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions and are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions when the restrictions are met. Grants and contracts revenues whose restrictions are met in the
same reporting period are reported as net assets without donor restriction.

Revenues from non-exchange transactions may be subject to conditions in the form of both a barrier to
entitlement and a refund of amounts paid (and a release from obligation to make future payments). The
Organization recognizes revenue earned from conditional non-exchange grants and contracts as these
conditions are satisfied. At September 30, 2023, the Organization had $397,101,328 of conditional grants
and contracts not recognized as revenue in the statement of activities.

Revenues from exchange transactions are recognized as the Organization satisfies performance
obligations, which in some cases, mirrors the timing of when related costs are incurred. In the case of the
procurement and delivery of commodities revenues are recognized upon receipt by the customer. As of
September 30, 2023, included in advances for program work is $99,852,811 of deferred revenue related to
exchange transactions, which will be recognized as revenue upon completion of delivery of commodities
and receipt by the customer. Also included in the advances for program work, is $76,327,458 of
non-exchange grant funding received in advance of revenue being earned.

Donated Materiais and Services

Donated materials and services are recorded as in-kind project contributions at their estimated fair market
value as of the date of receipt and as an expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of activities.
Donated services are recognized if the services received create or enhance non-financial assets or require
specialized skills that are provided by individuals possessing those skills and would typically need to be

.  purchased if not provided by donation.

11
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates .

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023

Income Taxes

R&T, PFSCM, and WEI are exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the iRC and are not
private foundations as described in Section 509 while InSuppiy is an international non-profit,
non-governmental organization based in Kenya which is subject to Kenyan income tax based on the
Kenyan income Tax Act but does not subject to US taxation.

JSi, CEO, and TMG are corporations that are subject to Federal, state, and other jurisdiction income taxes,
while JSIPL is an organization based in India, and therefore,..subject to taxation as set by the Indian
Revenue Authority.

Accordingly, deferred tax assets arid liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable
to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. These assets and liabilities are measured using rates expected to be in effect when
these timing differences reverse. Valuation allowances are provided to the extent that tax assets are not
likely to be recovered.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for ail taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. A valuation
allowance is established against a deferred tax asset when it is more likely than not that the asset or any
portion thereof will not be realized.

JSI has evaluated its tax positions and believes that there would be no material changes to the results of
its operations or financial position as a result of an audit by the applicable taxing authorities,, federal or
state. JSI has filed all of its known and required returns in a timely manner including, as permitted, allowed
extensions. Following administrative practice of the taxing authorities, the tax years 2018 through 2023
remain open years subject to possible examination and review.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities haye been summarized on a functional
basis in the consolidated statements of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among
the programs and supporting services benefited. Each functional classification Includes all expenses related
to the underlying operations by natural classification. Natural expenses attributable to more than one
functional expense category are allocated using a variety of cost allocation techniques. .

Foreign Currency Transactions

Expenses of international operations are measured generally using local currency. Expenses are translated
to USD. using the first in, first out method of exchange based on the bank rate assigned at transfer. As a
result, foreign currency transaction gains and losses are negligible and are included as direct program
expenses.

Receivables for Program Work

Receivables for program work are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectabie amounts ttirough a provision for bad debt
expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of
individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection
efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The

12
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc: and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023

allowance for doubtful accounts at September 30, 2023 was $0. Included in receivables for program work
is $71,073,501 of amounts billed and $8,758,172 of amounts unbilled at September 30, 2023.

Goodwill

Goodwill is the amount by which the cost of acquired net assets in a business combination exceeds the fair
value of the identifiable net assets on the date of purchase or valuation.

The Organization has adopted Accounting Standards Update {"ASU") 2014-02, Intangibles - Goodwill and
Other, to account for goodwill. ASU 2014-02 provides private companies alternative accounting for
amortizing goodwill on a straight-line basis over a 10-year useful life, replacing the previous method of
subsequent measurement, which required a testing of goodwill for impairment at least annually. Under the
new guidance, impairment testing is performed upon the occurrence of a triggering event Indicating that the
fair value of the entity (or operating units) might be less than its carrying amount and there is no annual
goodwill impairment test. When a triggering event occurs, an entity has the option to perform a qualitative
assessment to determine whether a quantitative test is needed.

If that assessment demonstrates that it is not more likely than not that an impairment exists, no further
testing is required. On the other hand, if impairment of goodwill is more likely than not, a quantitative test is
required that compares the fair value of the entity (or reporting unit) with its carrying value. The amount by
which the carrying amount exceeds fair value represents the impairment loss to be recognized, up to the
carrying amount of goodwill. Additionally, a company elects to amortize goodwill on a straight-line basis
over either 10 years or less than 10 years if a shorter useful life is more appropriate. Further, a company
that elects the alternative must also elect whether to test goodwill for impairment at the entity level or the
reporting unit level. The Organization has elected to amortize goodwill.on a straight-line basis over 10 years
and to test goodwill for impairment, when necessary, at the entity level.

No triggering events were identified during fiscal 2023.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Leases

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842),
and issued additional accounting standards updates which provided changes, modifications, clarifications,
and interpretations related to this guidance thereafter (collectively, "Topic 842"). Topic 842 amends a
number of aspects of lease accounting, including requiring lessees to recognize almost all leases with a
term greater than one year as a right-of-use (ROU) asset and corresponding liability, measured as the
present value of the future lease payments. R&T adopted Topic 842 as of October 1, 2022 using the
modified retrospective transition method.

The new standard provides a number of optional practical expedients in transition. R&T elected the practical
expedients to not reassess its prior conclusions about lease identification under the new standard, to not
reassess lease classification, and to not reassess initial direct costs. R&T has not elected the practical
expedient to use hindsight in determining the lease term at the adoption date and has not elected the
practical expedient pertaining to land easements as this is not applicatsle to the current contract portfolio.

The new guidance also provides practical expedients and accounting policy elections for ongoing lease
accounting. R&T has elected the recognition exemption for short term leases for all leases that qualify.
Under this exemption, R&T will not recognize ROU assets or lease liabilities for those leases that qualify
as a short-term lease (a lease term of 12 months of less), which includes not recognizing ROU assets or
lease liabilities for existing short-term leases of those assets In transition. R&T has elected the practical
expedient to not separate lease and non-lease components for all existing asset classes. R&T has elected
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September 30, 2023

the nonpublic business entity accounting policy alternative to use a risk-free discount rate instead of R&T's
incremental borrowing rate for all existing asset classes.

I

Upon adoption, R&T recognized operating lease ROU assets of $1,581,409 and operating lease liabilities
of approximately $1,581,409.

JSI adopted Topic 842 on January 1, 2022, using the modified retrospective transition method. Upon
adoption, JSI recognized operating lease ROU assets of approximately $46,300,000 and operating lease
liabilities of approximately $46,400,000.

PFSCM had no leases as of the adoption date. However, PFSCM entered into an operating lease
agreement with an effective date of February 1, 2023. As of the effective date of this lease PFSCM
recognized a ROU asset and lease liability of $1,577,263.

Credit Losses

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses: Measurement of
Credit Losses on Financial Instruments (Topic 326), to update its guidance on recognition and
measurement of financial assets and liabilities and replace the incurred \loss methodology with a
methodology that reflects expected credit losses and requires consideration of a broader range of
reasonable and supportable information for credit loss estimates. ASU 2016-13 is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2022. Early adoption is permitted. The Organization is
currently evaluating the impact of adopting ASU 2016-13 on its financial statements but does not expect
the impact to be material.

NOTE 3 - ACQUISITION OF TMG

Prior to October,1, 2022, JSI was a 40% shareholder of TMG. Accordingly, JSI's investment in TMG was
reflected in the financials utilizing the equity method of accounting. Effective October 1, 2022, JSI
purchased the remaining outstanding shares for $1.700,000 and became the sole shareholder of TMG.

As of the date of acquisition the estimated fair value of the assets and liabilities assumed, net of the existing
equity investment was as follows;

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,296,641
Accounts receivable 658,003
Prepaid and other current assets ' 67,785
Goodwill 727,375
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (263,901)
Existing equity investment in TMG (785,903)

$  1,700,000

The Organization recorded goodwill of $727,375 as a result of this acquisition.
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N0TE4-INSUPPLY

inSupply is a non-profit organization under the Kenyan Companies Act. 2015. Effective October 1, 2022,
R&T is the sole member and guarantor on InSupply. As of October 1, 2022, the estimated fair value of the
assets and liabilities of InSupply were as follows;

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,330,780
Accounts receivaljle 33,315
Prepaid and other current assets 74
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (2,072,798)

Total net assets 5 291,371

As there was no consideration related to this transaction the $291,371 is reflected in the statement of
activities as contributed net assets.

NOTE 5 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK - CASH

The Organization maintains demand deposits and money market funds at financial institutions. At times,
certain balances held in these accounts may not be fully guaranteed by the United States government.
The uninsured portions of cash and money market accounts are backed solely by the assets of the financial
institution. Therefore, the failure of a financial institution could result in a financial loss to the Organization.
However, the Organization has not experienced losses on these accounts in the past and management
believes the risk of loss, if any, to be minimal.

NOTE 6 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation account balances as of September 30, 2023:

Furniture and equipment $ 4,427,328

Leasehold improvements 13,504,917

Gross property and equipment 17,932,245

Less: accumulated depreciation (11.365.041)

Property and equipment, net $ 6.567.204

Depreciation expense was $1.420,757 for the year ended September 30, 2023.
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NOTE 7 . ADVANCES FOR PROGRAM WORK

Advances for program work consist of the following at September 30, 2023:

Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation $ 32,455,067
Various donors 63,557,232
Global Fund 79,602.223

Doris Duke Charitable Foundation " 565,746

$ 176,180,268

Advances for program work represent refundable advances of cash related from non-governmental
organizations. They are reported as advances because there is typically a barrier placed by the granting
organization, as well as a right of return if the funds are not used in accordance with the terms of the
arrangement with the funding organization. Once the barriers are overcome and there is no longer a right
of return, revenue is recognized.

NOTE 8-DEBT

WEI had a revolving line of credit with a bank with a borrowing limit of up to $500,000. The loan was payable
on demand, interest was charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on the LIBOR (Advantage) rate plus
2.50%. The line is coilateralized by a first priority interest in all the assets of WEi. The line of credit remained
in effect until May 31, 2023, with no outstanding balance at the time, and was not renewed thereafter.

JSI has a revolving demand loan with a bank. The loan allows for borrowings up to $6,500,000. Interest is
charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on a per annum rate equal to 2.00% above the one-month
BSBY, payable monthly in arrears, which at Septerpber 30, 2023 was 7.39%. The loan is coilateralized by
a security agreement with a first lien on all business assets of JSI and R&T, including assignment of
promissory notes and security documents between the two companies. The bank's agreement to advance
funds is subject to an annual review in April. As of September 30, 2023, there were no outstanding
borrowings under this agreement.

NOTE 9 - CONTINGENCIES

In accordance with the terms of its federal and state grants and contracts, the records of the Organization
are subject to audit. The Organization is, therefore, contingently liable for any disallowed costs.
Management believes that any adjustment, which might result from such an audit, would be immaterial to
the consolidated financial statements.

Provisional indirect cost rates are negotiated with the USAID on an annual basis. As of September 30,
2023, actual indirect cost rates have been approved by USAID for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc
and JSI through December 31, 2019 and WEI through June 30,2022. Based on favorable past experience,
management believes the effects of changes to the overhead rates, if any, would not be material to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 10-NET ASSETS

Donor restricted net assets as of September 30, 2023 are restricted for use in specific programs and/or
projects that are specified by the donor.

Included in net assets without donor restrictions as of September 30, 2023, is common stock (of CEC)
totaling $2,050.

Including in net asset without donor restrictions as of September 30, 2023 is common stock (of TMG)
totaling $43,875.

As of September 30, 2023. JSI has 875 shares of $1 par value common stock authorized, issued and
outstanding. As of September 30, 2023, JSIPL has1,000 shares of no-par value common stock authorized,
and 100 shares issued and outstanding.

NOTE 11 - RETIREMENT PLANS

R&T has a defined contribution profit sharing/401(k) plan covering substantially ail of Its employees. R&T
contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee's monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll,
to the plan. In addition, employees receive a 100% match on the first 2% of employee contributions made
to the plan. Employees who are contributing less than 2% of their pay to their retirement account are
automatically enrolled at 2% either at the time of hire, or annually in July. Pension expense was $4,948,085
for the year ended September 30, 2023.

WEI has a defined contribution tax sheltered annuity plan covering substantially all of its employees. WEI
contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee's monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll.
Additional voluntary contributions may be made by the employees. Participants of the plan are fully and
immediately vested when contributions are made. Pension expense was $415,714 for the year ended
June 30, 2023.

JSI has a defined contribution profit sharing/401(k) plan covering substantially all its employees. Employee
contributions are voluntary. As of July 1, 2018, JSI contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee's
monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll. In addition, employees will receive a 100% match on
the first 2% of contributions made to their retirement account. Employees who are contributing less than 2%
of their pay to their retirement account will automatically be enrolled at 2% either at the time of hire, or
annually in July. Pension expense was $1,029,425 for the year ended September 30, 2023.

PFSCM has a defined contribution profit sharlng/401(k) plan covering substantially all of its employees.
PFSCM contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee's monthly earnings, funded with each month's
payroll. In addition, employees receive a 100% match on the first 2% of contributions made to the pian.
Employees who are contributing less than 2% of their pay to their retirement account are automatically
enrolled at 2% either at the time of hire, or annually in July., Pension expense was $236,643 for the year
ended September 30, 2023.

TMG has established a 401 (k) Retirement Plan for its erhployees who have met required eligibility
requirements. The Plan allows participants to make a pre-tax contribution as well as a TMG matching
percentage up to 4% of the participant's compensation. The Plan also provides for discretionary 401(k)
employer profit sharing contributions. For the period January 1, 2023 through September 30, 2023, 401 (k)
contributions totaled $191,384.
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NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases

R&T leases space for general offices under operating leases expiring from 2024 through 2027. The leases
contain renewal options for periods of up to five years.

JSI leases space for general offices under operating leases expiring at various dates through 2030. The
leases contain renewal options for five to ten-year periods.

PFSCM entered into an operating lease agreement for its field office in Woerden, Netherlands that
commenced on February 1,2023. The lease term expires on February 1,2030. Under the lease agreement,
PFSCM has a four-year renewal option through February 1, 2034. The annual base rent under the lease is
approximately $210,800. ■

WEI leases space for general offices on a year-to-year basis.

During the year ended September 30, 2023, operating lease costs and lease costs under short-term leases
were $6,768,178 and $1,072,723, respectively.

Future obligations under.operating leases as of September 30, 2023 are;

2024 $ 6,027,577
2025 5,588,031
2026 7,043,326
2027 6,858,692
2028 6,937,426

Thereafter 11,740,968

$  44,194,020

Supplemental information related to operating leases as of September 30, 2023, consists of the following:

ROU assets $ 49,468,669

Accumulated amortization (7,507,484)

ROU assets, net $ 41,961,185

ROU liabilities, current $ 7,444,243

ROU liabilities, non-current 34,822,121

ROU liabilities $ 42,266,364

The following summarizes cash flow and supplemental noncash information related to the Organization's
leases for the year ended September 30. 2023: -

Cash paid for amounts included iri the measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 8,542,737
ROU assets obtained in exchange for new lease liabilities '1,141,435
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Supplemental Information related to leases as of September 30, 2023, consist of the following;

Weighted-average remaining lease term (in months) 77
Weighted-average discount rate 1.78%

NOTE 13 - CONCENTRATION OF FUNDING

The Organization received 10% or more of its revenues and support from the following sources for the year
ended September 30. 2023:

% of Total

Revenue Income

The Global Fund (PfSCM) $ 415,379,336 45%
U.S. Agency for International Development (R&T, JSI and WEI) $ 320,332,065 34%

The end date of the current Global Fund contract is December 31, 2024; based on procurement functions
that will extend beyond this date, revenues are estimated to remain the same through fiscal year 2025.
PFSCM has submitted a proposal for the Global Fund's consideration to either extend the current contract
or issue a new contract. Management anticipates contract continuation at similar terms If PFSCM is the
successful bidder.

NOTE 14 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES

The Organization maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. Given the project-based nature of the
Organization's work, the annual budget is structured to break even and ensure that there are sufficient
inflows to cover budgeted outflows each year. Any use of the Organization's reserve, which is minimal, is
subject to management's review and approval.

The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as of September 30, 2023, reduced by amounts
not available for general use within one-year due donor-imposed restrictions:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 198,258,786
Receivables for program work 79,831,673

Total financial assets available within one year 278,090,459

Less: donor restricted assets (800,588)

Total financial assets available to management for
general expenditures within one year $ 277,289,871

The organization also has one committed lines of credit with availability of $6.5 million, which it could draw
upon in the event of an unanticipated liquidity need (see Note 8).
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NOTE 15-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through June 27, 2024, the date on which the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. On October 1,2023, both JSI and TMG were
merged into R&T and no longer exist as separate legal entities.
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KATHERINE ROBERT

Education
University of New Hampshire, Durham, New Hampshire

Master ofPublic Administration, 2QQ9
Bachelor of Arts in Political Science, 2006

Experience

JSI, Bow, New Hampshire
Regional Director, August 2019 to present
Responsible for overall functionality and performance of JSI Northern New England team and office operations; ensures
alignment of JSI NNE activities with the JSI Health Services Division priorities and vision; provides supervision and support
to staff in order to promote morale and work quality.

Consultant. December 2007 to present
Provide technical assistance, training and evaluation to health and human service organizations to support the development of
effective public health and health care systems.

HIGHLIGHTS OF RELEVANT PROJECTS

NH Early Childhood Comprehensive Systems (ECCS), Jttly 2022-Present Serves as co-Director with NH Family
Voices. Project activities have included a storytelling project, various efforts to provide CQl support to health care
providers, the development of webinars focused on improving care coordination practices in various settings, and the
implementatioh of a rapid micro-grant program.

Public Health Professional Support Services July 2013 to present Provide fiscal and administrative coordination to
the contract task leads. Serve as the primary point of contact for DHHS contracts and finance groups, and liaise with the
JSI accounting department.

State Health Assessment and Improvement Plan August 2019 to present Partner wilh the University of New
Hampshire to facilitate and support the State Health Assessment and Improvement Plan Advisory Council and
community engagement subcommittee. Create logo and graphic materials, lead the plan's vision development, and serve
as primary lead for community engagement through quantitative and qualitative data collection methods. Designed
www.NHLivesWell.org.

Lower Grafton County Council for Young Families, United Way of the Greater Seacoast, and SAU2I Preschool
Development Grant Needs Assessment Projects (three separate projects) September 2020 to December 2021 In all
three regions, implement a multi-modal needs assessment to inform each respective early childhood coalition's regional
Preschool Development Grant work. Needs assessment activities for each project included a review of secondary data for
towns and cities in the UWGS footprint to support improved service delivery for families with young children.
Leveraged work by groups conducting parallel needs assessments to collect primary data from families, conduct key
informant interviews with local agency leaders, and conduct focus groups with families. Project deliverables include
community profiles, an inventory of local programs and supports, and high-level recommendations for where partners
may focus coordination and planning.

NH Home Visiting Program Supports and Services July 2015 to September 2021 Act as statewide training
coordinator for the NH Home Visiting Program and its sub-recipient agencies implementing the Healthy Families
America model. Conduct annual needs assessment, identify subject-matter expert trainers, and engage in continuous
dialogue with agencies to most effectively provide training and technical assistance resources. Develop and implement a
statewide needs assessment, and provide consultation to the NH Home Visiting Task Force. Oversight of additional
scopes of work include implementation of continuous quality improvement plan for local implementing agencies,
marketing and multi-media campaign development, and post-partum visit utilization pilot research project.

Lakes Region Community Health Needs Assessment September 2020 to January 2021 Complete a.Community Health
Needs Assessment on behalf of the LRGHealthcare. Central NH VNA & Hospice, HealthFirst Family Care Center, and
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the Partnership for Public Health. Assessment activities include the development, administration and analysis of a
community leader survey and a general community resident survey; preparation of a discussion guide for community
discussion groups, orientation of discussion facilitators and synthesis of discussion notes; the collection of population
health statistics from secondaiy data sources; and the completion of a final needs assessment report with a presentation
of key findings to project partners.

Act Early Needs Assessment September 2020 to July 2021 Analyze qualitative survey data submitted by developmental
screening partners and stakeholders, as it relates to challenges families face in accessing developmental screening during
COVID. Supplement qualitative data with data culled via a systemic review of other recently completed needs
assessments and strategic plans to support families with children under the age of five.

Watch Me Grow Steering Committee Strategic Facilitation May 2020 to June 2021 Provide strategic facilitation
support to the Watch Me Grow Steering Committee. Identify technical assistance needs, and coordinate with partners in
order to support the Committee in furthering its goals and objectives around increasing early identification of
developmental screening and improving access to supportive care and services. Support development of centralized
access point pilot project to support a more integrated statewide system for developmental screening.

NH Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting Needs Assessment July 2017 to October 2018 Provide
project direction and oversight to a statewide needs assessment required by HRSA's Maternal and Child Health Bureau
to identify communities with concentrated risk, assess the quality and capacitj' of existing home visiting offerings, and to
understand the state's capacity for providing substance use disorder treatment and counseling services to families in
need. The multi-modal needs assessment utilized a systematic data review, community survey, focus groups, a
PhotoVoice project, and the oversight of the NH Home Visiting Task Force to develop its findings and recommendations.

Healthy Start EPIC Center December 2014 to May 2019 Provide technical assistance and training to Healthy Start
grantees to ensure program effectiveness in achieving the goals to reduce infant mortality and health disparities, and
improve perinatal health outcomes. This project focused on providing comprehensive and innovative capacity building
assistance to communit>'-based grantees, measuring project success by the degree to which grantees achieve core
competencies essential for effective implementation of the Healthy Start model and institutionalize a culture of Ql and
evaluation based on a foundation of documented program effectiveness. Primary responsibilities include coordination of
technical assistance.

Other Relevant Experience

Leadership Greater Concord Class of2024 member, September 2023 - present Participates in a monthly leadership
development program aimed at strengthening connections across sectors for the betterment of Concord and its
surrounding towns, and to increase civic engagement.

NH Health & Equity Partnership Diversity and Cultural Competence trainer, April 2018 - present Participated in a
train the trainer session to qualify in offering diversity and cultural competence trainings for wide range of organizations.

Southern New Hampshire University AYem^e/; Public Health Advisory Council, 2018-2023
Advise SNHU to support its Council of Education for Public Health Accreditation application process.

Rivier University Adjunct Faculty, September 2016-January 2018
Developed the curriculum for and instructed the online capstone for the undergraduate Public Health program.

Professional Associations

•  YWCA New Hampshire Board ofDirectors. 2020 - 2021
• . NH Public Health Association, Past President, 2012-2018
• NH Home Visiting Task Force 20/.9
•  American Public Health Association Member, 2013 - Present
• NH Public Health Services Improvement Council Member. 2016-present
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Cara Griffith

Education

University of New Hampshire Institute on Disability

Building Futures Together Certificate, 2022

St. Lawrence UNivERsm'

B.A. Sociology, 2019, Public Health and Arabic Studies Minors

Experience

JSI, Bow, New Hampshire, Project Associate, February 2023-Present

NH NH Early Childhood Comprehensive Systems (ECCS), October 2023-Present
Serves as a Project Associate; responsible for providing support and technical assistance through CQI, coordinating virtual
learning opportunities for providers, and establishing and providing contract management to a micro-grant with a focus on

improving the experience of families receiving care or resource coordination support.

NH Public Health Emergency Preparedness,
Serves as a Project Associate and Project Manager; supports project to provide technical assistance and support to the 13 Regional
Public Health Networks in NH around public health emergency preparedness, planning, and response. Assists in meeting and
training logistics, training development, and statewide jurisdictional risk assessment. Assist in After Action Report development
for the NH Mpox response. Acts a Project Manager in planning for the NH Emergency Volunteer Conference.

WY Workforce HPSA Projects, Februaiy 2023-Present
Served as a Project Associate and Survey Coordinator; responsible for assisting in identifying areas meeting the federal criteria
for health professional shortage area (HPSA) and medically underserved area/population (MUA/P) in the state of Wyoming.
Conducts collection and analysis of statewide primary care, mental health, and dental health survey data and completes data
updates in SDMS system. Works with providers and members of the local ser\'ice area to obtain and validate information for
designations.

Prior Experience

NH Student Assistance Network, February 2023-October 2023
Served as a Project Associate; provided support in planning, logistics, and coordination of Community of Practices, Regional Peer
Collaboratives, and assisted in evaluation, contract management, and subcontracting process. The NH Student Assistance
Network develops and promotes Student Assistance Programs and provides group and individual technical assistance, a
Community of Practice learning collaborative, and support wjth evaluation and sustainability planning.

NH Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, February 2023-Ociober 2023
Served as a Project Associate; responsible for providing technical assistance and support to the Coordination and Cooperation
Task Force of the NH Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs through the Center for Excellence on Addiction. This
support included providing meeting preparation and support through note taking, creation of agendas, finalizing official meeting
summaries and minutes for online publication, as well as coordinating internal meeting logistics and budget tracking.

The Upper Room, a Family Resource Center Derry, NH
Program Coordinator, 2020-2023
Managed Teen Infonnation for Parenting Success and Kinship Navigation programs, to promote self-siifficiency and increase
outcomes for over 50 families using a trauma informed approach. Developed and facilitated a calendar of workshops, while
building strong partnerships with communit)' organizations. Assisted in data collection, report writing, and case management as
well as provide oversight to staff and volunteers.

Presentations

Panelist, International Summit on Female Concussion and TBI at Georgetown University, 2016.
Speaker, TEDx Amoskeag Millyard at Southern New Hampshire University, 2015.

Computer Skills

Microsoft Office, Google Suite, QuickBase, NextGen, Canva, MailChimp
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Katelyn Flaherty Dor£

Education

ASSOCIATION FOR TALENT DEVELOPMENT (ATD) CERTIFICATION INSTITUTE
E-Learning Inslruciional Design Cerlificale. 2023

ACADEMY OF LACTATION POLICY AND PRACTICE, MASSACHUSETTS

Certified Lactation Counselor. 2018 (renewed in 2021)

Boston University, Boston, Massachusetts

MPH. Maternal and Child Health, 2012

University OF Wisconsin, Milwaukee, Wisconsin

BS, Major in Biolog}', 2004 .

Experience

JSI. Boston, Massachusetts

Senior Consultant, June 2020-Present | Project Manager, March 2012- June 2020 | Intern, Nov 2011- March 2012

Selected projects:
Reproductive Health National Training Center (HHS Office of Population Affairs). Grantee Liaison /
Training and Technical Assistance Provider (T& TA). Serve as direct point of contact for a group of Teen
Pregnancy Prevention Program grantees to facilitate access to T&TA resources. Design T&TA opportunities,
including the on-demand Trauma-Informed Approach in Adolescent Health: Team Meeting Series.
Introduction to Fidelity eiearning course. Introduction to Adaptations eiearning course, and Introduction to
Sexual and Reproductive Anatomy and Physiology'for TPP Project Staff eiearning course. These on-demand
learning opportunities are inclusive of multiple learning modalities such as text, graphics, audio, video,
interactive and scenario-based activities, and case studies.

Recipient Compilation of Best Practice Strategics and Interventions (HRSA HIV/AIDS Bureau).
Knowledge Management & Communications Lead. Provides strategic direction to develop and refine the
Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program (RWHAP) Best Practices Compilation—a comprehensive, web-based
resource that allows people to easily search, share, and nominate emerging and established approaches shown
to improve HIV care and services. Coordinates across JSI and subcontractor team to design and write profiles
and curate resources, develop fact sheets and postcards, and design presentations. Collaborate with the
University of California, San Francisco (UCSF) to design, develop content for, maintain, and refine the
Compilation (largethiv.org/bestpractices). Develop dissemination plan and coordinate with HRSA and UCSF
to promote the Compilation.

Family Planning National Training Center (HHS Office of Population Affairs). eLearning Specialist.
Designed on-demand learning opportunities including the Providing Quality Family Planning Services:
Recommendations ofCDC and the U.S. Office ofPopulation Affairs (QFP) eLearning series and Identifying
and Responding to Human Trafficking in Title XSettings eLearning Course.

New Hampshire Maternal, Infant, & Early Childhood Home Visiting (MIECVH) Program T&TA.
Training Advisor and eLearning Lead. Worked as part of a team to assess MIECHV local implementing
agency staff T&TA heeds and design responsive yearly training plans. Planned, designed, and implemented a
variety of opportunities including in-person meetings, webinars, eNewsletters, blended learning, eLearning,
and microsite. Assessed participant satisfaction with T&TA opportunities and identifies opportunities for
improvement.
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Supporting Healthy Start Performance Project (HRSA Maternal and Child Health Bureau). Online
Technologies Lead & Capacity Building Assistance Provider. Provided T&TA services to Healthy Start
grantees across the U.S. Managed online technologies (healthystartepic.org website, Twitter, and YouTube).
Co-led the development of an 11-module online Community Health Worker course and companion guide for
supervisors. Including formative research to inform course content development, programming content into
web-based platform, conducting user testing to refine course experience, and leading the development of
communications materials to increase awareness of and uptake of the course.

What Works in Youth HIV (Oflice of Adolescent Health). Content Development Specialist. Worked with
a team to research and develop content for the What Works in Youth HIV website and TA to re-launch the
Adolescent HIV/AIDS Prevention National Resource Center. Areas of focus included building the capacity
of youth-serving providers to: 1) find prevention strategies, inter\'entions, or social media/marketing
strategies to meet the needs of youth, 2) use positive youth development principles, and 3) create engaging
programs and inclusive supportive environments for the youth they serve.

Wisconsin Human Trafficking Awareness Campaign (Wisconsin Department of Children and Families).
Community Engagement Specialist. Led a team in formative research to inform the development of the
Wisconsin Human Trafficking Awareness and Prevention Campaign. Methods included a literature review;
national, state, media, and social media scans; listening sessions, key informant inter\'iews, and a conversation
with the Anti-Human Trafficking Task Force; and in-person and virtual focus groups to test campaign
materials.

Working with Diverse Communities (Centers for Disease Control and Prevention). Communications
Specialist and TA Provider. Provided dissemination support TA on the Working wi/h Diverse CommuniUes
(WDC) project, a component of the CDC TPP Integrating Services, Programs, and Strategies Through
Communitywide Initiatives project. Responsibilities included and collaborating on the development and
dissemination of a video and discussion guide.

Massachusetts Alliance on Teen Pregnancy. Technical Assistance Provider. Worked with Massachusetts
Alliance on Teen Pregnancy and their community partners in Lawrence, Massachusetts to plan a pilot
community referral network for teens as part of a Teen Pregnancy Prevention (TPP) grant from OAH.

Working with Diverse Communities. Technical Assistance Provider. Provided dissemination support
T&TA on the Working with Diverse Communities (WDC) project, a component of the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention TPP Integrating Services, Programs, and Strategies Through Communitywide
Initiatives project. Responsibilities included collaborating on the development and dissemination of a video
and discussion guide.

Healthy Futures TPP Evaluation. Project Manager. Provided evaluation project management on a TPP
grant from.OAH. Used a randomized controlled trial design to evaluate the impact of Healthy Futures on
youth knowledge, perceptions, and behaviors in three Massachusetts communities.

Boston University School of Public Health, Boston, Massachusetts
Research Fellow, Got 2010 to Get 2011 \ Administrative Assistant/Coordinator, January 20J0 to November 2011

Boston Public Health Commission, Boston, Massachusetts

Intern, June 2011 to August 2011

Meriter Hospital, Madison, Wisconsin
Scheduling Coordinator, August 2007 to July 2009

St. Francis Pediatrics, Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Medical Gffice Manager, .July 2004 to August 2007
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POSTERS I PRESENTATIONS
Selected posters and presentations:

Association of Nurses in AIDS Care, New Orleans, LA, October 2023
Poster: Dor6 KF, Hook J, Herur S. The RWHAP Best Practices Compilation: Accelerating Knowledge
Transfer to improve HIV Services

National Latinx Conference on HIV, HCV, SUD, New Orleans, LA, May 2023
Poster: Florentino J, Dore KF, Hook J. The RWHAP Best Practices Compilation: Accelerating Knowledge
Transfer to Improve HIV Services Within the Hispanic/Latina(o/x) Community

National Transgender Health Summit, San Francisco, CA, May 2023
Poster: Florentino J, Dor^ KF, Hook J. The RWHAP Best Practices Compilation: Improving HIV Services
for the Transgender Community through Knowledge Transfer.

SYNChronicit>': The National Conference for HIV, HCV, STIs, Harm Reduction, and LGBTQ Health,
Virtual, December 2022.

Poster: Herur S, Dor6 KF, Hook J. The RWHAP Best Practices Compilation: Accelerating Knowledge
Transfer to Improve HIV Services

Youth+Tech+Health (YTH) Live Global, Virtual, October 2022
Presentation: Dor6 KF, Hiltner M. Encouraging Conversations about Trauma-Informed Approaches:
On-Demand Team Meeting Packages

. National Ryan White Conference on HIV Care & Treatment, Virtual, August 2022
Poster: Dor6 KF, Hook J, Dean D, Psihopaidas D, Bakayoko N The Best Practices Compilation: Accelerating
RWHAP Knowledge Transfer

American Public Health Association Public Health Film Festival, Denver, CO, October 2021

Video Presentation: Refuge, J, Dor6 KF, Hook J, Psihopaidas D, Bakayoko N. What are emerging strategies
and how can I submit mine?

American Public Health Association, San Diego, CA, November 2018
Presentation: Dor6 KF, Dean D, Fox D, Spezeski J, Vatalaro M, Rossen J. Strengthening the Healthy Start

.  CHW Workforce

American Public Health Association Global Public Health Film Festival, Chicago, IL. November 2015
Video Presentation: Hicks RJ, Dor6 KF, Renderos W, Hernandez Jennings M, Chu J, Dean D, Sokhos I. Place
Matters: Youth Perspectives on Teen Pregnancy & Their Environment

Publications

Quimby K, Spitzer N, Dor6 KF, Kawatu J. An eLearning series for staff working in Title X-funded settings:
An effort to disseminate national family planning recommendations. Contraception. 2023 Apr;l20:l09903.
doi: 10.IOI6/j.contraception.2022.10.005. Epub 2022 Oct 15. PMID: 36257373.

DeAngelis KR, Dor6 KF, Dean D, Osterman P. Strengthening the Healthy Start Workforce: A
Mixed-Methods Study
to Understand the Roles of Community Health Workers in Healthy Start and Inform the Development of a
Standardized.Training Program. Maternal and Child Health Journal. 2017; 21 (SuppI I): S65-S74

Calise TV, Chow W, Dori KF, O'Brien MJ, Heitz ER, Millock RR. Impact of the Healthy Futures Program
on Teen Sexual Behaviors in Three Massachusetts Cities: A Cluster Randomized Controlled Trial. Am J

Public Health. 2016; 106 (SuppI I): SI03-SI09
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Calise TV, Rowland J, Bliss CA, Flahert>' KL, Gordon R. Differential Effects of the Healthy Futures •
Program on Sexual Risk Knowledge, Beliefs, Behavioral Intentions and Behaviors by Middle School vs. High
School Grades. Journal of Health Behavior <& Public Health. 2012;' 2(3): 8-14.

K. Dore 4 of 3



Docusign Envelope ID: 4064F531-A2B8-4D08-ABFC-36FE1B4BFF79

Julie Attys, MPH
Education

BOSTON UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF PUBLIC HiLALTH

Master ofPublic Health. Global Health Program Design. Monitoring, and Impact Evaluation 2020

MONTCLAIR STATE UNIVERSITY

Bachelor of Science, Public Health conc. Community Health Education

Experience

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (JSI), Bow, New Hampshire
Consultant, July 2021-present
40 Hours/Week

Program Evaluation of the Birth Equity and Support through the Inclusion of Doula Expertise (BESIDE)
Investment Program.
Qualitative Data Collection Lead. August 2023- present.
JSI will undertake the patient experience survey and patient interview portions of the HPC's mixed-methods program
evaluation of the BESIDE Investment Program. To accomplish this, JSI will work with the HPC to prepare the final study
design for these portions of the evaluation, facilitate a Patient Experience Committee (PEC), administer and analyze
patient experience surveys, and facilitate and analyze patient interviews to understand site-specific program impact. JSI
will produce a summary report including the methods, recruitment process, and a brief summary of findings to inform the
BESIDE Investment Program evaluation report developed by the HPC.

New York State Perinatal and Infant Community Health Collaborative Center for Community Action
Project Director, October 2023-November 2024.
As the New York State Perinatal and Infant Community Health Collaborative Center for Community Action (PICHC
CCA), JSI ser\'es as the training and technical assistance provider for 26 agencies funded by the New York State
Department of Health (NYSDOH) PICHC initiative. The overall goal of the PICHC initiative is to improve perinatal and
infant health outcomes and eliminate racial, ethnic, and economic disparities in those outcomes through collaborative and
coordinated community-based strategies. PICHC programs will implement individual-level strategies to address perinatal
and infant health behaviors, and community-level strategies to address the social determinants which impact health
outcomes.

Center for Disease Control arid Prevention Expansion of Disease Intervention Training.
Program Manager, September 2022- present.
With funding awarded through the "Improving Clinical and Public Health Outcomes through National Partnerships to
Prevent and Control Emerging and Re-Emerging Infectious Disease Threats" program, JSI is working closely with the
CDC Division of STD Prevention (DSTDP) to develop new and expand existing training opportunities for the disease
intervention workforce. Areas of focus include: (I) implementing the Coaching for Enhanced Disease Intervention Skills
(CEDIS) program; (2) developing a comprehensive training program for DIS supervisors, inclusive of synchronous and
asynchronous learning; and (3) developing new curricula to increase STD surveillance capacit>', including a new course on
syphilis staging.

Nassau County Health Disparities Study - COVID-19 Barriers.

Focus Group Facilitator, October 2022- December 2022.

In partnership with Choice for All, a local community-based organization, JSI analyzed qualitative and quantitative data
for the purpose of producing a survey to determine attitudes around COVID-19 vaccination, and barriers/facilitators to
COVID-19 testing and treatment in Nassau County, NY. Tasks implemented for this project included conducting a scries
of focus groups in both English and Haitian Creole.
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New Hampshire Medical Reser\'e Corps Development
TA Provider, August 202! - June 2023.
Work to strengthen the statewide volunteer system, including convening regular meetings of unit coordinators, providing
individual technical assistance, organizing statewide recruitment efforts, developing and implementing volunteer surveys^
and planning trainings for volunteers.

New Hampshire Public Health Emergency Planning Technical Assistance and Training
TA Provider. August 202! -June 2023.
Provide technical assistance and support to the 13 Regional Public Health Networks in New Hampshire (NH) around
public health emergency preparedness, planning, and response. Contribute to the development of trainings and plan
templates on a variety of public health and emergency response topics, including medical surge, medical countermeasure
dispensing, emergency public information, and emergency operations coordination. Develop, facilitate, and evaluate
exercises and real events.

Harbor Homes Grants for the Benefit of Homeless individuals

Program Evaluator, August 2021 — January 2023.
Evaluator for the 5-year SAMHSA-funded Grants for the Benefit of Homeless Individuals (GBHI)) and technical
assistance with on-going quality improvement strategies by monitoring, participant feedback and process evaluation.
Design and oversee a utilization-focused evaluation plan, data collection tools, integration with electronic medical
records systems, develop and disseminate evaluation reports and comply with Federal reporting requirements.

New Hampshire Center for Excellence
Data Analyst, August 202!-July 2022.
Provided technical assistance to DHHS Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services and other state and local stakeholders in
support of best practice implementation, quality improvement, and data reporting and evaluation. Conducted data
analysis and report writing for the implementation of the 2020 Middle School Youth Risk Behavior Sur\'ey (YRBS).

Prior Experience

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Senices, Concord, NH
November 2020-July 2021
40 Hours/Week

Investigation Branch Director, November 2020-July 2021.
Served as an Investigation Branch Director for a team of 100 case investigators, public health nurses, and congregate
setting investigators. Conducted weekly training for staff members, developed and updated disease investigation
protocols, and served as a subject matter expert fbr internal public health matters related to COVID-19 disease
investigations. Developed a new process for how schools, childcare centers, and camps will report positive cases to the
Department of Health and a prioritization process for the investigators to assess each case reported to the State ofNew
Hampshire.

Case Investigation Lead, July 2020 - November 2020.
Supported the New Hampshire Public Health COVID-19 Operations Center by conducting COVlD-19 disease
investigations. Supervised, trained and supported staff conducting disease investigations. Served as a resource and
provided guidance related to disease investigation. Conducted quality assurance on disease investigation work in New
Hampshire Electronic Disease Surveillance System (NHEDSS) and provided recommendations for improvement.

Partners in Health, Boston, Massachusetts
Case Investigator and Supervisor. April 2020- July 2020.
40 Hours/Week

Supported the Massachusetts COVID-19 response in several different roles, including COVID-19 case investigator and
supervisor. Acted as primary point person to call individuals with a positive diagnostic test for COVID-19, provide
support and gather information including information about the disease using Salesforce. Trained and led a team of 100
case investigators, care resource coordinators, and contact tracing. Conducted Troubleshooting with units on difficult
cases, patient referrals, and escalated as needed to the central leadership team or local board of health.
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Hands up for Haiti, Cap-Haitian, Haiti
Intern and Committee Member. May 2019-May 2021.
40 Honrs/Week

Developed a qualit)' improvement plan as part of an in-depth review to strengthen current process evaluation methods.
Developed a qualitative questionnaire in Haitian Creole, French, and English to address severe acute child malnutrition
(SAM) in rural Haiti to give to over 100 respondents. Conducted trainings for community health workers (CHWs) on
how to administer questionnaires to program participants in the SAM program. Established monitoring and evaluation
framework for the severe acute child malnutrition program.

Tufts University, Boston, Massachusetts
Research Assistant. 09/18-12/20.

10 Hours/Week j
Developed, programmed, and managed surveys in REDCap. Recruited 50 mothers-daughter dyads living with HIV
from various community-based organizations and web-based platforms. Conducted 20 qualitative interviews and
analyzed transcripts using NVivol2. Perfonned data cleaning procedures and assisted with data analysis using Excel
and RStudio. Supported the development of the Black Maternal Health Conference for 800 attendees to address
maternal health disparities across the US. t

AFFILIATIONS

JSI Northern New England Equity Committee, Member, August 2021-present
JSI Center for Capacity Development, JSI Domestic Division Liaison, April 2022- present

SELECT PUBLICATIONS

Shull, J., Attys, J., Amutah-Onukagha, N., Hill, M. (2020, October). Utilizing emergency departments for pre-exposure
prophylaxis (PrEP). Journal of the American College of Emergency Physician.

Fletcher, F., Amutah-Onukagha, N., Attys, J., Rice, W. (February 2021). Volume 23, Number 2: El 50-159. How Can the
Experiences of Black Women Living with HIV Inform Equitable and Respectful Reproductive Health Care Delivery?. AMA
Journal of Ethics.

Skills

Computer: Microsoft Office, Google applications, NVivo 12 Pro, MAXQDA, RStudio, SPSS, SAS, RedCap, Endnote
Language: Full Professional Proficiency- Haitian Creole
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Yvonne Hamby, M.P.H.

Education

University of South Florida, Tampa, Florida

SIPH, Maternal AND Child Hfalth, 1996
Recipient of the Centers of Excellence in MCH Education, Science and Practice (formerly the National MCH
Traineeship)

Georgia State University, Atlanta, Georgia
BA, Sociology', 1989
Sociology Honors Award

Experience

JSI, Denver, Colorado

Project Director and Evaiuator, 1999 to present
Quality-oriented professional with 22+ years of experience and a proven knowledge of research methodology, wellness
programs, and public health administration. Areas of expertise are program evaluation, research, and quality improvement of
health services delivery for under-served populations. Skilled in quantitative and qualitative research and evaluation design,
analysis, and implementation. Below are a sample of key evaluation/quality improvement projects I have led:
•  Treating Addiction in Rural Areas ECHO, Evaiuator for the HRSA funded project as multi-year learning

opportunity for organizations providing substance use disorder treatment services. It is a team-based ECHO learning
community.

•  Evaluation of Clinics Pathway Approach (CPA) Grantee Work, Qualitative Evaluation Lead, Episcopal Health
Foundation contracted with JSI to conduct the evaluation of this 5-year project, looking at current clinic capacity
strengths and needs, improvements implemented by the clinics, and strategies utilized, as well as facilitators and
barriers to conducting population health management successfully.

•  Comprehensive Reproductive Health Needs Assessment and Planning, Project Director, Mississippi Department
of Health, Family Planning Program contracted with JSI to conduct a con>prehensive landscape assessment and
strategic planning for reproductive health needs and services across the stale.

• Wyoming Breast and Cervical Cancer Early Detection Program Evaluation, Project Director, JSI was contracted
to conduct an evaluation of the Wyoming Cancer Program to determine the reach and impact of the program as well as
areas of improvement.

•  New Hampshire Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting Home Program. Responsible for the
development and implementation of a continuous quality improvement (QI) plans for three local agencies implementing
the Healthy Families America model, funded by the federal Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting
Program (MIECHV). Providing Ql coaching and training to three QI teams.

•  Spirit within Project, JSI was contracted by Denver Indian Health and Family Services to conduct a comprehensive
evaluation of the Spirit within Program. SWP was a federally funded grant which focused on delivering health
messages and programs to the community about incorporating traditional foods and nutrition and physical activity in
daily activities.

•  Evaluation of Partnerships Impacting STD Outcomes in Areas of Service Reduction, Stakeholder Engagement
Consultant, contributed to the development and implementation of partnership strategies, the survey tool, and the
in-depth assessments and site visits.

•  Supporting Healthy Start Performance Project-Healthy Start Collaborative Improvement and Innovative
Network, CollN Team Lead, Health Resources «& Services Administration, Maternal Child Health Bureau contracted
with JSI to provide facilitation and leadership development to the HS CollN.

Certificates | AWARDS | HONORS
Systems Thinking Advanced Facilitator Credential, Water's Center for Systems Thinking
Social Marketing and Qualitative Research Summer Institute

ATD Adult Learning Certificate

Colorado Medical Institution Review Board, Expedited Review
CITI Program Human Research Group and Social & Behavioral Research
Technology of Participation Strategic Planning, Institute of Cultural Affairs
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Emma Gier

Education

DePaul University, Chicago, Illinois
Master of Public Health, Community Health, 2020

DePaul University, Chicago, Illinois

Bachelor of Arts, Anthropology', 2017

Cornerstone Doula Tr.ainings

Full Spectrum Doula Certification, expected June 2024

Experience

JSI, Berkeley, California
Consultant, September 2022-present

Delaware Maternity Care Target Area (MCTA) Landscape Analysis | Delaware Division of Public Health

Serves as Qualitative Research Lead. Project team will conduct landscape analysis to identify leading factors that contribute

to maternal health and maternity care access, and to better understand disparities within each MCTA. Responsible for

developing qualitative protocol detailing study design, sampling and recruitment methods, data collection methods, analysis

plan, and data collection tools.

California Home Visiting Program Planning | City of Berkeley Department of Health, Housing and Community Services

Served as Program Manager. Oversaw and conducted mapping and analysis of current California Home Visiting Program
(CHVP) programs in similar Local Health Jurisdictions (LHJ), current Berkeley Public Health Division (BPH) services for
families and children, and the size, scope and demographics of eligible CHVP population in Berkeley to identify a) gaps in
programming and services, b) staffing requirements to implement and sustain CHVP, and c) anticipated challenges in
program implementation and sustainabilit>'. Findings informed final report detailing recommended selection of HV model.

City of Berkeley CH A/CHIP | City of Berkeley Department of Health, Housing and Community Services

Serves as Program Manager. Project team will conduct a Health Assessment and develop a Health Improvement Plan for the
City of Berkeley. Throughout this project, the team will: integrate qualitative and quantitative research methods to gain a
clearer picture of context and opportunities to improve the wellbeing of residents, engage a Steering Committee of
community leaders with organizational standing and lived experience to ensure genuine community engagement and
power-sharing, and center health equity and a root-cause analysis so that solutions acknowledge history and focus on
high-impact structural and systems changes.

Delaware PRAMS Non-Response Study | Delaware Division of Public Health, Delaware Health and Social Services

Led qualitative data collection and analysis to learn about parental experience with being contacted for the (Pregnancy Risk
Assessment and Monitoring System) PRAMS survey and the factors that influenced their decision to respond or not.The
purpose of this study was to explore and identify factors related to response and non-response to the Delaware PRAMS
survey, and inform strategies and actions of the Delaware Division of Public Health to promote response to the PRAMS
survey.

Santa Clara County Childhood Immunization Campaign | County of Santa Clara Public Health Department
Responsible for formative research processes including but not limited to; literature review, environmental.scan, planning and
facilitation of stakeholder convening and listening sessions; key informant interviews; and execution of message testing
workshops. This project aimed to design and implement an immunization campaign to increase vaccination rates among
children in the south Bay Area. The campaign focused on COVID-19 vaccines as a part of routine vaccinations for children,
aiming to reach parents and caregivers. Led development and provision of trainings for community partners on addressing
vaccine hesitancy and patient advocacy.

Delta Center California | California Health Care Foundation
Collaboratively crafted, wrote, and designed Learning Lab team final products including project spotlights, podcasts, and

EGier I
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briefs. Supported convening preparation and execution, project management, and Learning Lab team coaching. Delta Center
California was a 2.5-year initiative supported by the California Health Care Foundation and the Robert Wood Johnson
Foundation that brought together behavioral health and primary care leaders to accelerate care improvement and Integration
through policy and practice change. The project aimed to foster collaboration and collective action between primary care and
behavioral health at the state and county level in California; to build knowledge and ability of state associations to ensure that
changes in incentives and care systems meet the goals and needs of individuals and families; and to accelerate payment and
care integration through on-the-ground projects in selected sites across California. Ultimately, Delta Center California aimed
to advance health policy solutions and create a care system that better meets the goals and heeds of individuals and families,
and addresses racial and economic disparities.

Northwestern University, Program In Public Health, Chicago, IL
Teaching Assistant / Co-lnslruclor, 2021-2022
Facilitated case based foundational public health courses; sourced current reading materials in alignment with CEPH MPH
competencies; graded student work, and engaged with students to support them in becoming public health professionals

Northwestern University, Center for Community Health, Chicago, IL
Mothers and Babies Evaluation and Implementation Coordinator, 2020-2022
Oversaw program evaluation efforts to understand implementation and client-level impact as MB is implemented in real world
settings; facilitated trainings and provided tailored technical assistance for all implementation sites; developed implementation
resources and strategies to support service providers as they implement MB; conducted readiness conversations to assess
organizational structure, and barriers and facilitators to implementation; created adaptations and innovations of intervention
materials to meet needs of diverse parent populations, increase reach and promote equity; provided supervision and mentorship to
staff and interns

Mothers and Babies Program Intern, 2019-2020
Evaluated and assessed feasibility and scalability of pilot Fathers and Babies program

RefugeeOne, Chicago, IL
Resettlement Case Coordinator. 2018-2020

Oversaw department to ensure productivity, efficiency and quality assurance; completed regular file checks in preparation for
contract compliance monitoring and evaluation; conducted intake interviews with all new clients and referred to appropriate •
departments; created client-focused strengths-based self-sufficiency plans for all new arrivals; evaluated cultural orientation
curriculum and revamped to better meet needs of clients

Publications/Presentations

Ward, E. A., Iron Cloud-Two Dogs, E., Gier, E. E., Littlefield, L., & Tandon, S. D. (2022). Cultural Adaptation of the Mothers
and Babies Intervention for Use in Tribal Communities. Frontiers in psychiatry, 13, 807432.
hlln.;://doiorv/l0.3389/fnsvt.2022.807432

Hamil, J., Gier, E., Garfield, C. F., & Tandon, D. (2021). The Development and Pilot of a Technology-Based Intervention in the
United States for Father's Mental Health in the Perinatal Period. Americanjournal ofmen's health, 15(5),-15579883211044306.
https://doi.org/l0.II77/l55798832I1044306

Tandon, S. D., Hamil, J., Gier, E. E., & Garfield, C. F. (2021). Examining the Effectiveness of the Fathers and Babies
Intervention: A Pilot Study. Frontiers in psychology', 12, 668284. https://doi.org/I0.3389/fpsyg.202I.668284

Innovative Methodologiesfor Adapting an Evidence-Based Perinatal Depression Preventive Intervention to Advance Equitable
Dissemination and Implementation. 2022, Presentation - Society for Prevention Research 30* Annual Meeting.

Cultural Adaptation ofan Evidence Based Postpartum Depression Inten'ention: Mothers and Babiesfor Tribal Communities.
2021, Presentation - Ann & Robert Lurie Children's Hospital Scholarly Projects - Monthly Series.

Computer Skills

Microsoft Office, Google Suite, ATLAS.ti, NVivo, Creative Cloud, Canva, WordPress

EGier2
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Rachel Daube

Education

Keene State College

Bachelor ofScience. Political Science

Experience

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire
Analyst. August 2022 to present

Maine CDC's Rethink Diabetes Campaign, November 2021 to present
Serves as an Analyst and digital marketing specialist; responsible for marketing tasks including
development and implementation of paid and organic marketing and communications plan; fulfilling
reporting requirements, monthly budget reconciliation, campaign analysis and reporting.

NH Community-Based Partnership for Comprehensive Tobacco Control, November 2021 to present
Serves as an Analyst; responsible for analysis, reporting, and marketing tasks supporting the
implementation and maintenance of a statewide multi-media marketing strategy for mass-reach
communication interventions of a comprehensive.tobacco prevention and cessation.

NH Tobacco Prevention and Cessation Program, November 2021 to present
Serves as an Analyst; responsible for analysis, reporting, and marketing tasks including developing and
implementing a campaign for Tobacco Cessation eLearning Modules for QuitWorks-NH; participates in
formative research and focus groups to reduce health disparities of those living with a mental health
condition or illness who use tobacco; completes monthly reporting and campaign analysis.

Concord Hospital Community Health Needs Assessment/Implementation Plan, August 2022 to present
.  Serves as an Analyst; collects and compiles state health and population data, identifies resource gaps and

, ̂  systems strengths and weaknesses, analyzes and reports findings, and facilitates community-based focus
groups and engagement sessions.

NH Adult Drug Court, January 2023 to present

Serves as an Analyst; provides support to elevate the use of evidence-based practices and principles; build
capacity in risk and needs assessment; ensure access to evidence-based ser\'ices; expand the use of recovery
support services; and conduct ai program recidivism study.

Dartmouth Hitchcock Community Health Needs Assessment, August 2023 to present
Serves as an Analyst; collects and compiles state health and population data, identifies resource gaps and

systems strengths and weaknesses, analyzes and reports findings, and facilitates communit>'-based focus

groups and engagement sessions.

NH Lives Well State Health Improvement V\zi\, January 2024 to present

Serves as an Analyst; responsible for creating implementation plans and materials for community partners

to elevate the identified priorities and strategies of the State Health Improvement Plan.

Prior Experience

Santa Clara County Public Health Department Childhood Immunization, January 2023 to July 2023
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Served as Digital Marketing Specialist; responsible for all aspects of developing, implementing,
maintaining, and analyzing a paid digital media campaign for Santa Clara Count>', OA's "Another Part of
Growing Up" vaccine campaign.

City of Portsmouth, NH Department of Public Health, Community Health Profile, 2022 lo
March 2023

Served as Analyst; conducted a community health profile for the city of Portsmouth, NH to understand
population health data, inequities in access to and use of local health services and systems, and compiled a
directory of data resources for future assessment use.

The Partnership@drugfreeNH, November 202/ la November 2022
Served as Project Associate for The Partnership @drugfreeNH which convenes stakeholders in prevention
from across the state of NH in conversation about best practices, communit)' learning and the utilization of
best practices. Duties include maintaining partner campaigns such as Binge-Free 603, Today is For Me, and
Take A Break NH; The Partnership Blog asset development and technical oversight; assisting with paid
advertising and marketing strategies; partnering with local youth coalitions; and other tasks as assigned.

NH Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program, November 202/ lo September 2022
Served as Project Associate responsible for administrative tasks such as tracking deliverables,
communicating with the clients, reviewing the work plan, and scheduling both management and internal
meetings.

NH Immunization Program Toolkit Development, March 2022 to Angus! 2022
Served as Project Associate responsible for development of two immunization toolkits: one for NH schools
to use to educate parents about the importance of pediatric vaccination and encourage parents to get their
children caught up on vaccines, and one to share with NH pediatric providers that they can use to educate
parents about the importance of pediatric vaccination and encourage parents to get their children caught up
on vaccines.

Skills

Adobe Creative Suite; Google applications {sites, docs, forms); Microsoft Office Suite; 1MB SPSS Statistics; Social
media management/advertising platforms (Meta, Linkedin, YouTube, Snapchat, TikTok, Spotify, Canva, Yoast SEO,
Hootsuite); Web content management systems (Wprdpress); Email management software (Hubspot, Constant
Contact, Salesforce, MailChimp, SendlnBlue/Brevo); Search advertising platforms (Google Ads, Microsoft Ads
[Bing]); OTT advertising (Spectrum, Hulu); Survey and analysis platforms (Qualtrics, Sur\'eyMonkey).

Certifications

Hubspot CMS for Developers Certification
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

•  JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.Contractor Name:

NAME JOBTITLE ,
ANNUAL AMOUNT

; PAID-FROM THIS

.  dONTRACT
ANNUAL SALARY

Katherine Robert = Project Director $21,992.81 $148,000.08

Cara Griffith Project Coordinator $12,480.60 $66,000.00

Katelyn Flaherty Dor6 Training Lead $5,678.95 $114,726.24

Julie Attys Peer Learning Lead $13,076.81 $88,000.08

Yvonne Hamby Quality Improvement $14,910.23 $154,992.00

EmmaGierT , Technical Advisor $3,885.27 $87,113.75

RachelDaube Analyst $13,876.91 $70,050.00

Project Associate (TBD) Project Associate $9,188.32 $62,463.12
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1^ A. Weaver'
CoamUtleotr

Jftio Wart

-laurim Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OFPVBLIC HEALTH SER VICES

39 HAZEN ORIVC. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-27M501 l-S0(^52-334S Ext 4501

Fax: 603>271-4827 TDDAccm: I-800-735-2964 «rww.dbhi.nb.gov

March 11. 2024

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Cpuncjl.

StateHouse

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to award a contract with JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. dba Community Health
Institute (VC#1616il-B,001), Bow, NH, In the amount of $425,000 to provide training and
technical assistance to the NH Materna|, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting prograni. with
the option to renew for up to four (4) additional years, effective upon Governor and Council
approyalthroughJune SO. 2025. 100% General Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2024 and 2025,
upon the availability and continued approprialion of funds in the future operating budget, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances tsetween
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95- 90-902010-5896 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF FAMILY HEALTH AND NUTRITION, HOME
VISITING FORMULA GNT

State

Fiscal Year

Class I

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2024 102-5Ci0731
Contracts for Program

Services
90005896

$175,000

2025 102-500731
Contracts for Program

Services
90005896

$250,000

Total $425,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to provide statewide, coordinated training
and technical assistahce services and professlpnal develppment pppprtunities tp home visiting
staff.. The Contractor will ensure successful outcomes focused on family health and wellness,
prorhoting healthy parent-child interaction and child development, and making community
connections. The Contractor will promote increased knowledge and sklll-bullding among the
Department's contracted home visiting agencies, timely and efficient administrative processes,
and effective evaluation of programs.
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His ExceUency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council
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Approximately 65 home visiting staff will be served during state fiscal years 2024 and
2025.

The Contractor will support the Department's Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home
Visiting Program and its six (6) local implementing agencies. The Contractor wit! provide a broad
range of home visiting and famity support professional development support services to the local
implementing agencies and the Department's Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting
Program staff. The Contractor will:

•  Develop and implement a variety of prevention-focused training programs.

•  Conduct needs assessments to determine specific professional development
needs.

•  Conduct a gap analysis to determine communities and populations for targeted
outreach.

•  Provide scholarships for home visiting staff to attend advanced trainings.

•  Provide technical assistance ensuring subject matter experts are available to the
Department.

V,

•  Provide logistical support and plarining for conferences and meetings.

•  Provide an opportunity for families participating in the Healthy Families America
NH program to have a voice in the quality improvement and sen/ice delivery
activities of the program.

The Department will monitor services through:

• Quarterly reports from the Contractor.

• Quarterly meetings virith the Contractor.

• Monthly review of invoices and supporting fiscal documents.

The Department selected the Contractor through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Applications (RFA) that was posted on the Department's website from December 22,
2023 through January 31, 2024. The Department received two (2) responses that were reviewed
and scored by a team of qualiffed individuals. The Scoring Sheet Is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the attached agreement, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, contracted local
implementing agencies will be without suffiaent resources to meet their required professional
development needs, leaving staff under-trained for the work they do with families. Additionally,
the Department will.be unable to adequately assess gaps in services provided to NH communities;
which may leave NH families at greater risk for negative maternal and child health outcomes.

Area served: Statewide.

Respectfully submitted, '

Lori A.^ Weaver

^^Commissioner

ThtDeporlmtnl ofHtoUh and Human Servict$'Mission is io'Joui communilia and familitt
in providing opportunities for cicirent to ochieur heaUh and independtnce.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Project IDS ^RFA-2024-DPHS«104<OMEV
Project Tide 'Home Visiting MIECHV Training and Technical Assistance-

Maximum

Points

Available

JSI Research &

Training InstKute,
d/b/a Community
Health Institute

NH ChiJdren's

Trust

Technical • -

Experience (01) 125 122 120

Tratnirx) and Technical (Q2) 75 75 67

Recruitment ary) Engagement
(03) -  100 95 85

TOTAL POINTS 300 292 272

Reviewer Name Tide

■KristiHari .. - . t Administrator

Paula Gyurcsan •Program Manager . -  •;

'GaryTrtus iData Coordinator ■ - - ri

X^rginia Jof>esl , 'Fam>y Support Program Specialist '

'Mikufig Hughes . " r

^Manager !
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bocuSign Envelope ID: 5O061CAE-f8DC-:46F6-B9CE-7E1D9EC33761 FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)
Subject: RFA-2024-DPHS-10-HOMEV-01,(Home Visiting MIECHV Training and Technical Assistance)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and

Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

'  The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree.as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I State Agency Name

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.3 . Contractor Name
JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
dba Community Health Institute

I.S Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 573-3300

1.6 Account Unit and Class

05-95-90:902010-5896-102

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

1.1! Contractor Signature
—DocuSlgitM bjr.

3/8/2024

Date:

^  ̂ rnoe; iweexst,-;-————
3  Slate Agency Signature

—OocuSlgnM by:
3/13/2024

Date:

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.4 Contractor Address
501 South Street, 2nd Fl.
Bow, NH 03304

1.7 Completion Date
June 30. 2025

1.8 Price Limitation

S425.000

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Katharine Robert Director

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

• lain watt interim Director - OPrts

. 15 Appro\1i1^lSy'l1ic'N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)
-OvCuSlgnatf by;

By: I On: 3/13/2024

.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date;

.  ;

Page I or4

•M

Contractor Initial^
Date
3/8/2024
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New
Hampshire, acting.through the agency identiHed in block I.I
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor")
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particuiarly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
bccomc.effectivc on the date the Governor and Executive Council
approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become efTcctive on the date the
Agreement Is signed by the Slate Agency as shown in block 1.13
("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Dale, all Sers-ices performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwitlislanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
the. continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
the Slate be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any stale or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in part,
the Stale shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
Slate shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds
in that Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circutnstanccs, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. Tlic
payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor iri the pcrfonnancc

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80;7'C or any other provision of law.
5.4 The State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunit)' laws and the Governor's order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affirmative
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by slate or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors
comply with these nondiscriminalion requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all mics, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
neccssar>' to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under'all applicable laws.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the State's point of contact pertaining to this
Agreement.

Page 2 of 4
Contractor I"^^20r4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of ihe following acts or omissions of (he
Contractor shall constitute on event of default hereundcr ('"Event

of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be reniedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of lime, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, cfrectivc two (2) calendar days
after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that

the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or In equity, or both.

9. termination;

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the Slate is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the Stale's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing In detail
all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to and
including the date of termination. In addition, at the State's
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar doys
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "Property" shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unfinished.

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned
to the State upon demand or upon temtlnalion of this Agreement
for any reason.
10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be
governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

n. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor -is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
Ihe State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employees,
agents or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive
any benefits, workers" compensation or other, emoluments
provided by the State to its employees.

12. assicnment/delegation/subcontracts.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the Stale written notice at least fifteen
'(.15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other tronsfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfcrShall be effective without
the written consent of the State.

12.2 . For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its afniiatcs, becomes (he direct
or indirect o>vncr of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.

12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted.by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the Stale.
12.4 The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it
is not a.part)'.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees
from and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable altomcys' fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal injur)-, property damage, intellectual property
Infringement, or other claims asserted against the Stale, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The Stole shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by (he Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's

sovereign Immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination
of this Agreement.

Page 3 of4
Contractor
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14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee. to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
SI,000,000 per occurrence and S2,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor, a ccrtiflcalc(s) of
insurance for ail insurance required under this Agreement. At the
request of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall provide cenificate(s) of insurance for ail renewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The ccrtificatc(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15.) By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A. ("lyorkcrs'
Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require,
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers' Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes (o undcnakc pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewals) thereof, which shall be anached and are incorporated
herein by reference, flic State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers' Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or. employee of
Contractor, which might arise-under , applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
perfonnancc of the Ser\'ices under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE., Any notice by a party hereto to the other part)' shall
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post
Office addressed'io the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2
and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in vvriting signed by (he parties
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of
Nevs' Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used , in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but ntust, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict'between

the terms of this P-37 form {as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement including any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the panics hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied. Is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
inierprctation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carr)' out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVERABILITY. In (he event any of the provisions of this
Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject mailer
hereof.

Page 4 of4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting MIECHV Training and Technical Assistance

I  EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form Pr37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Cornpletion of Services, is amended by deleting
subparagraph 3.3 in its entirety and replacing it as follows:

3.3. Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date specified
in block 1.7. The parlies may extend the Agreement for up to four (4)
additional years from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.5 as follows:

12.5. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

r—0#

JSI Research & Training Inslitule, lf>c. dba Communily Health Institule 3/8/2024
Page 1 of 1 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
RFA-2024-DPHS-10-HOMEV-01

•  EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must provide training and technical assistance to the NH
Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting (MIECHV) program,
including its participating agencies.

1.2. The Contractor must ensure services increase the capacity of local and state-
level home visiting professionals to provide high-quality home visiting services
to NH families. Services must include but are not limited to:

1.2.1. Developing and implementing training programs.

1.2.2. Conducting training needs assessments.

1.2.3. Developing educational materials.

1.2.4. Planning for statewide and .regional conferences.

1.2.5. Making subject matter experts available to NH MIECHV contractors.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to business hours mean
Monday through Friday from 8:00 AM to 4:00 PM.

1.4. The Contractor must provide a broad range of home visiting and family support
professional development opportunities to local implementing agencies (LIA)
staff and the Department's MIECHV Program staff, including, but not limited to:

1.4.1. Conducting needs assessments to determine specific professional
development needs.

1;4.2. Developing and implementing a variety of prevention-focused training
programs.

•1.4.3. Providing logistical support and planning for conferences and
meetings.

1.4.4. Providing technical assistance ensuring subject matter experts are
available to the Department.

1.4.5. Developing and distributing educational materials to LIAs and the
community as directed by the Department.

1.4.6. Providing scholarships for home visiting staff to attend advanced
trainings.

1.4.7. Ensuring the efficient use of resources.

1.5. The Contractor must provide services to increase the capacity of LIA staff to
provide high-quality home visiting services by:

1.5.1. Developing and implementing a variety of training programs;

1.5.2. . Developing evaluation plans for all developed trainings; I
RFA-2p24-DPHS-lO.HOMEV.01 B-2.0 • Contractor Inlllals ^
JSI Reaearch & Trainfng Ifwtilute. Inc. dba Community Health InslHute 3/8/2024

Page 1 of 14 Date_



Docusign Envelope ID: 4064F531-A2B8-4D08-ABFC-36FE1B4BFF79

pocuSign Envelope ID: SD06tCAE-F8DC-46F6-BgCE-7ElDgEC33761

•  New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
RFA-2024-DPHS-10-HOMEV-01

i  EXHIBIT 8

1.5.3. Facilitating conference planning and providing logistical support
'I sen/ices for these conferences; and

1.5.4. Providing technical assistance to the Department and its Contractors,
;  as determined by the Department.

Ir 1.6, Gap Analysis and Program Support

j' 1.6.1. NH Maternal Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting (MIECHV)
j  Program
J  1.6.1.1. The Contractor must work with the NH MIECHV program to
i  conduct and complete an annual gap analysis of the NH
'  MIECHV program's current service populations compared

to the populations identified in the 2018 Needs Assessment,
1  to identify opportunities for improved community outreach
I  within the first 12 months of the resulting contract and
'  annually thereafter.

1.6.1.2. The Contractor must, based on the findings of the gap
J  analysis, support the MIECHV Program in all identified at-

risk communities in conducting a minimum of two targeted
outreach efforts annually to engage and recruit members of
diverse populations, unserved or underserved by the NH
MIECHV program.

1.7. Logistical Support for Conferences, Meetings and Planning Groups

1.7.1. General Logistic Support for Conferences

1.7.1.1. The Contractor must provide logistical support for
conferences as approved by the Department, which must
include, but is not limited to:

,  1.7.1.1.1. Convening, facilitating, and documenting
meetings of work groups and role-specific

;  groups.

I  1.7.1.1.2. Developing the conference and meeting
'  agendas in coordination with planning teams

and/or the Department.

1.7.1.1.3. Compiling e-mail lists to promote conferences
'  using addresses supplied by members of the
V  planning team.

^  1.7.1.1.4. Designing and electronically publishing
conference brochures, "Save the Date"

T  announcements, and other marketing materials
i  as funding allows. ;
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17.1.1.5. Disseminating announcements of meetings to
members.

1.7.1.1.6. Designing the layout and printing materials for
conference attendees.

1.7.1.1.7. Coordinating logistics with speakers.

'■ 1.7.1.1.8. Coordinating logistics with vendors and
supporting their logistical needs during

'  conferences.

1.7.1.1.9. Providing operations support during
conferences and meetings including, but not
limited to:

1.7.1.1.9.1. Registering attendees,

i  1.7.1.1.9.2. Coordinating IT needs.
1.7.1.1.9.3. Coordinating with the DHHS and

site staff.

1.7.1.1.9.4. Providing attendees with
-  certificates of attendance or
•V completion.

I  1.7.1.1.9.5. Conducting other activities
■if typically associated ^ with

conference and/or meeting
1  support.
I  1.7.1.1.10. Compiling data from evaluation forms

completed by attendees, analyzing data, and
*  providing written reports to programs.

if 1.7.1.1.11. Receiving payments from vendors, which must
be utilized for supporting conferences, with any
additional funding to be utilized for activities
funded by the program sponsoring the
conference. ,

1.7.1.1.12. Facilitating reservations and logistics of each
conference site.

'  1.7.1.1.13. Reporting all costs and income generated for
each conference to the program funding the

-  conference. ^

1.7.1.2. The Contractor must provide logistical support to the NH
i  MIECHV Program to support family advisory capacity,

;i including providing gift cards to caregiver/parent ad^
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1.7.1.3. The Contractor must offer program participants a $15 gift
card for completing surveys related to program
advertisement or program improvement.

1.7.1.4. The Contractor must offer a gift card in the amount of $25 to
program participants who participate In virtual meetings for
the purpose of program advisement, program improvement,
or virtual trainings.

1.7.1.5. The Contractor must offer a gift card in the amount of $50
for a half-day (up to 4 hours) and $100 for a full-day (up to 8
hours) to program participants who participate in in-person
meetings or trainings.

1.7.2. NH Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting (MIECHV)
Program

1.7.2.1. The Contractor must provide planning, scheduling and'
logistical support as requested for role-specific collaborative
meetings among LIA staff on at least a quarterly basis.
Meetings must be held to support the following groups:

1.7.2.1.1. HFA Nurses.

1.7.2.1.2. Family Resource Specialists.

1.7.2.1.3. Family Support Specialists.

1.7.2.1.4. Supervisors and Program Managers.

1.7.2.1.5. Newly hired staff.

1.7.2.1.6. Parent/caregiver/family leaders and advisors.

1.7.2.2. The Contractor must develop and Implement an annual
training plan that includes, but is not limited to:

1.7.2.2.1. Agency-or role-specific training plans.

1.7.2.2.2. A minimum of twelve (12) training opportunities
offered to NH MIECHV home visiting staff
annually.

1.7.2.2.3. Pre- and postrevaluations of developed
trainings.

1.7.2.3. The Contractor must provide logistical support to the NH
MIECHV Program to support family advisory capacity,
including providing gift cards to caregiver/parent advisors, in
a manner consistent with industry standards.

1.7.2.4. The Contractor must develop training for, or link
parent/caregiver/family advisors to existing trainlr^to
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support strategic sharing and professional growth in family
leadership for parent/caregiver/family advisors.

1.7.2.5. The Contractor must provide logistical support, planning
support and evaluation for a minimum of two (2) annual all-
staff or regional in-person training events for up to 60 staff
from the NH MIECHV Program.

1.7.2.5.1. Content for training events will be determined
based on a revievi/ of desired training content
gathered through annual training surveys, in
conjunction with a review of required training
content for the Healthy Families America (HFA)
model.

1.7.2.6. The Contractor must develop at least two (2) annual
workforce wellness or wellbeing activities/initiatives to
support agency staff in conducting self-care and team-
building activities to prevent compassion fatigue and
burnout, in support of workforce retention.

1.7.2.7. The Contractor must develop a set-aside fund to provide no
less than eight (8) training scholarships for NH MIECHV-
funded LIA staff, including HFA Family Resource
Specialists, Family Support Specialists, Registered Nurses,
Supen/isors, and Program Managers to participate in
advanced trainings and national conferences to expand
professional development and learning opportunities. In the
event of a special circumstance, approval may be given by
DHHS for scholarship funds to pay for HFA Core training on
a one-time basis.

1.8. Technical Assistance

1.8.1. The Contractor must provide technical assistance to support the NH
MIECHV program's continuous quality improvement (CQI) activities
through meeting coordination and the development of visual aids and
data visualizations as requested.

1.8.2. The Contractor must provide technical assistance as requested for
the purpose of engaging family and participant input related to
program improvement activities.

1.9. Development and Production of Educational Materials

1.9.1. General Standards for Education Materials

1.9.1.1. The Contractor must, in consultation with the Department
subject matter experts, develop and/or produce edudij^al
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materials on topics identified by Department staff.

1.9.1.2. The selected Vendor must obtain Department approval prior
to distribution of any produced materials, and ensure all
materials produced give credit to the funding source utilized
to create the materials.

1.9.1.3. The selected Vendor must ensure all materials are

developed in accordance with the CDC recommendations
specified in Simply Put: Guide to Developing Easy-To-
Understand Materials. CDC July 2010, including any
updates that may be issued by the CDC. This document can
be found- here:

https://www.cdc.aov/heatthliieracv/pdf/Simplv Put.pdf

1.9.2. NH Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting (MIECHV)
Program

1.9.2.1. The Contractor must assist the Department's NH MIECHV
staff with the development of outreach and educational
materials, that include, but are not limited to:

1.9.2.1.1. Updating the existing promotional materials in
both digital and print formats;

1.9.2.1.2. Developing 2-3 home visiting-specific social
media posts per month, to share on the DPHS
Facebook account.

1.9.2.1.3. Developing materials to support current and
upcoming CQI project activities, as guided by
the Home Visiting Program Manager or
designee.

1.9.2.1.4. Developing and/or sharing Environmental
Health promotional information and resource
toolkits in collaboration with the NH

Environmental Public Health Tracking program.

1.9.2.1.5. A monthly e-newsletter for NH MIECHV LIA
staff, promoting educational opportunities and
program information.

1.9.2.1.6. Other outreach and educational materials as

identified through the training plan, training
evaluations, or in response to emerging
programmatic needs.

1.10. Evaluation Planning
>  OS

1.10.1. The Contractor must develop evaluation plans, in consultamoii^ith
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Department subject matter experts, which clearly outline goals,
objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and performance measures.

1.10.2. The Contractor must ensure that all staff submit all required
documentation.

1.10.3. The Contractor must actively and regularly collaborate with the
Department to enhance contract management; improve results, and
adjust program delivery and policy based on successful outcomes

1.10.4. The Contractor must participate in meetings with-the Department on
a quarterly basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

1.11. The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department on a quarterly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

1.12. The Contractor may be required to facilitate reviews of files conducted by the
Department on an annual basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department,
that may include, but are not limited to:

1.13. Reporting

1.13.1. The Contractor must submit quarterly reports to which include, but are
not limited to:

1.13.1.1. Status of annual training plan;

1.13.1.2. Training content developed;

1.13.1.3. New training content made available to LIA staff from
outside sources;

1.13.1.4. In-person and virtual training with newly-developed content
provide to LIA staff including:

■  1.13.1.4.1. Content

1.13.1.4.2. Number of attendees

1.13.1.4.3. Evaluation Results .

1.13.1.4.4. Advanced Training Scholarships issued,
including:

1.13.1.4.4.1. Scholarship recipient.

1.13.1.4.4.2. Agenda of training attended.

1.13.1.4.4.3. Number of role-specific and other
meetings coordinated and/or
facilitated.

1.13.1.4.4.4. Status and outcohnes of gap
analysis.
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1.13.1.4.4.5. Activities conducted to address

service gaps.

1.13.1.4.5. Number and description of annual workforce
weiiness activities or initiatives conducted.

1.13.2. Performance Measures

1.13.2.1. The Contractor must provide key data in a format and at a
frequency specified by the Department for the following
performance measures:

1.13.2.1.1. Responds to all requests for high-priority
consultation services .within one (1) business
day.

1.13.2.1.2. Respond to all requests for high-priority
technical assistance within one (1) business
day.

1.13.2.1.3. At least 85% of prevention focused training
programs receive a rating no less than Very
Good'.

1.13.2.1.4. At least. 85% of the logistical support
conferences, meetings, and planning groups
receive a rating no less than Very Good".

■1.13.2.2. The Contractor must identify barriers to meeting
performance measures on a quarterly basis in conjunction
with the quarterly report, and provide a corrective action plan
which:

1.13.2.2.1. Identities barriers to success;

1:13.2.2.2. Iricludes a work plan for mitigating barriers; and

1.13.2.2.3. Includes a timeline in which compliance with
performance measures will be met.

1.13.2.3. The Contractor must ensure the following performance
outcomes and measure are achieved and monitored
throughout the contract period to measure the effectiveness
of the agreement:

1.13.2.3.1. 100% of staff deployed submit all required
documentation.

1.13.2.3.2. The selected Vendor must actively and regularly
collaborate with the Department to enhance
contract management, improve resu^.osand
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adjust program delivery and policy based on
success^!, outcomes.

1:13.2.4. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data
and metrics to the Department in a format specified by the
Department.

1.14. Confidential Data

1.14.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy

requirements as set by the Department and in accordance with the
Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit as
referenced below.

1.14.2. The Contractor must ensure any individ.uals involved in delivering
services through this Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing
to access, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance
with federal and state laws and regulations and the Department's
Information Security Requirements Exhibit. The Contractor must
ensure said individuals have a justifiable business need to access
confidential data. The Contractor must provide attestations upon
Department request.

1.15. Privacy Impact Assessment

1.15.1. Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department
in conducting a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) or Department
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) hosted by the
Contractor, if Personally Identifiable Information (PII) is collected,
used, accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor
must provide the Department access to applicable systems and
documentation sufficient to allow the Department to assess, at
minimum, the following:

1.15.1.1. How PII is gathered and stored;

1.15.1.2. Who will have access to PII;

1.15.1.3. How PII will be used in the system;

1.15.1.4. How individual consent will be.achieved and revoked;
and

1.15.1.5. Privacy practices.

1.15.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are
either significant process changes or new technologies impacting the
collection, processing or storage of PII. r-DS
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1.16.1. General Requirements

1.16.1.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the
Agreement the parties agree to cooperate in good faith to
effectuate a smooth secure transition of the Services from
the Contractor to the Department and. if applicable, the
Contractor engaged by the Department to assume the
Services previously performed by the Contractor for this
section the new Contractor shall be known - as

"Recipient"). Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the
contract or unless otherwise specified by the Department,
the Contractor must begin working with the Department
and if applicable, the new Recipient to develop a Data
Transition Plan (DTP). The Department shall provide the
DTP template to the Contractor.

1.16; 1.2. The Contractor; must use reasonable efforts to assist the
Recipient, in connection with the transition from the
performance of Services by the Contractor and its End
Users to the performance of such Services. This may
include assistance with the secure transfer of records

(electronic and hard copy), transition of historical data
(electronic and hard copy), the transition of any such
Service from the hardware, software, network and
telecommunications equipment and internet-related
information technology infrastructure ("Internal IT
Systems") of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems of the
Recipient and cooperation -with and assistance to any
third-party consultants engaged by Recipient in
connection with the Transition Services.

1.16.1.3. If a system, database, hardware, software, and/or
software licenses (Tools) was purchased or created to
manage, track, and/or store Department Data in
relationship to this contract said Tools will be inventoried
and returned to the Department, along with the inventory
document, once transition of Department Data is
complete.

1.16.1.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the
Contractor and its End Users shall be provided to the
Department and if applicable the Recipient in a timely
manner; Any such Transition Services shall be deemed
to be Services for purposes of this Agreement.

1.16.1.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the
Agreement, the Contractor agrees that the InfofmSidn
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Security Requirements, and if applicable, the
Department's Business Associate Agreement terms and
conditions remain in effect until the Data Transition is

accepted as complete by the Department.

1.16.1.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingled
Department Data and the destruction or Transition of said
data is not feasible, the Department and Contractor will
jointly evaluate regulatory and professional standards for
retention requirements prior to destruction, refer to the
terms and conditions of the Department's DHHS
Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

1.16.2. Completion of Transition Services

1.16.2.1. Each service or Transition phase shall be deemed
completed (and the Transition process finalized) at the
end of 15 business days after the product, resultirig from
the Service, is delivered to-the Department and/or the
Recipient in accordance with the mutually agreed upon
Transition plan, unless within said 15 business day term
the Contractor notifies the Department of an issue
requiring additional time to complete said product.

1.16.2.2. Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the
Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data per the
terms and conditions of the Department's Information
Security Requirements Exhibit.

1.17. Disagreement over Transition Services Results

1.17.1.1. In the event the Department is not satisfied with the results of the
Transition Service, the Department shall notify the Contractor, in
writing, stating the reason for the lack of satisfaction within 15
business days of the final product or at any lime during the data
Transition process. The Parties shall discuss the actions to be
taken to resolve the disagreement or issue. If an agreement is not
reached, at any time the Department shall be entitled to initiate
actions in accordance with the Agreement.

1.18. Website and Social Media

1.18.1. The Contractor must work with the Department's Communications
Bureau to ensure that any social media or website designed,
created, or managed on behalf of the Department meets all
Departmerit and NH DolT website and social media requirements
and policies.
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-  1.18.2. The Contractor agrees Protected Health Information (PHI),
Personally Identifiable Information (PII), or other Confidential
Information solicited either by social media or the website that is
maintained, stored or captured must not be further disclosed unless
expressly provided in the Contract. The solicitation or disclosure of
PHI, PII. or other Confidential Information is subject to the terms of
the Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit, the
Business Associate Agreement signed by the parties, and all
applicable Department and federal law, rules, and agreements.
Unless specifically required by the Agreement and unless clear
notice is provided to users of the website or social media, the
Contractor agrees that site visitation must not be tracked, disclosed
or used for website or social media analytics or marketing.

1.18.3. State of New Hampshire's Website Copyright

1.18.3.1. All right, title and interest in the State WWW site, including
copyright to all Data and information, shall remain with the
State of New Hampshire. The State of New Hampshire
shall also retain all right, title and interest in any user
interfaces and computer instructions embedded within the
WWW pages. All WWW pages and any other Data or
information shall, where applicable, display the State of
New Harnpshire's copyright.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit D, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

3.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to eQ^|ure
meaningful access to programs, and/or services to individuSi^^ith
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limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must Include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to;

3.3.3.1. Brochures.

3.3.3.2." Resource directories.

3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

3.3.3.4. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports.

.  3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contribtt^ns,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or reqlilrtEfcijy
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the Department.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts.

4.3. if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow
any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department
retains the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as
are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor. ->
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by;

1,1. 100% General funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1. The Contractor as a Contractor, based on the criteria in 2 CFR 200.331.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-
2. Budget.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day.of the month following,
the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure,
each invoice:

4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2. Is subnnitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

4.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

4.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that may,include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records;
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to Dhhs.dphs.contract@dhhs.nh.aov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

5. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

6. The final Invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block^^1.7
Completion Dale.

RFA-2024-DPHS-10-HOMEV.01 C-2.1 Contractor Inilials V
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7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget ciass lines through the

. Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of-the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

8. Audits

8.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov If
any of the following conditions exist:

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lli-b. pertaining to charitable
organizations.

8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative . Requirements. . Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor

■  shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

8.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

8.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk. .

8.5. In addition to, and not In any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the ContractorTtii^ihe

RFA-2024-DPHS-10-HOMEV-01 C-2.1 Conlraclor Initials N
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Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.
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Exhibit C-1 Budget SFY24

Now Hampshire Dopartment of Health and Human'Sorvices

Contractor Name:

JSI Research & Training Institute,
Inc. d/b/a Comrhunity Health
Institute

Budget Request for:

Horr>e Visiting MIECHV Training and
Technical Assistance .

Budget Period

Upon GC Approval through' June 30.
2024

indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)21% . . ' ....

Line ttcm Program Cost-Fun'ded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages •$62,070
2. Fringe Benoftls .  . $29,136
3. Consultants . $3,000
4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate canrtot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and

Apper>dix IV to 2 CFR 200.'

5.(a) Supplies • Educational .. « - '$3,000
5.(b) Supplies - Lab - . • . . . $0

5.(c) Supplies • Phermacy ;  . $0

5.(d) Supplies r Medical .  ... $0

5.(e) Supplies Office i  1 $0
6. Travel .  - ■ $2,000.
7. Software .$4,000
8. (a) Other" Marltetiry)/Communications .. $2,000.

8. (b) Other • Education and Training - .  - .$25,000

8. (c) Other - Other (spedfy below) .. .. . . . -.u. ., $0

Family Engagement $10,000
Other (please spedfy) $0.

Other (please spedfy) $0

Other (please specify) -• .. $0

9. SubredpienI Contracts SS.OOO-

Total Direct Costs $145;206'

Total Indirect Costs •c $29,794

TOTAL $1.75.000;

RFA-2024.0PHS-10-H0MEV^)1 Contraaor initial:^ Date:
3/8/2024
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name:

JSI Research & Training Institute.
Inc. d/b/a'Community Health
Institute, .

Budget Reguest for:

Hdnw Visrtir>9 MIECHV Training arid
Technical Assistance.

Budget Period July 1. 2024 through Ilune'SO; 202.5
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 20%. .. .. . .

Line Item Program' Cost • Funded by OHHS

1. Salary & Wages $94,554

2. Fringe Benelits $44,384

3. Consultants T  . ...'$5,000

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. ^  • '•> . * 50
S.(a) Supplies • Educational .r $3,000

5.(b) Supplies - Lab -  $0

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical .  . :v-iv $0.

5.(e) Supplies Office .  .1 . $0

6. Travel ._ .• ^ v.- $5,000

7. Software * • . . . $4,000.

8. (a) Other • Marketing^ Communications •  _ $2,000

8. (b) Other - Education and Training .  .$30,000

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0

Family Engagement $10,000

Other (please specify) .$0

Other (please specify) -  $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $10,000

Total Direct Costs $207,938

Total Indirect Costs $42,062

TOTAL - ... $250,000-

RFA-2024.DPHS- lO-HOMEV-Ol Contractor Initial:

"tie.
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable information,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health Information," Breach"
shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of
Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and

Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services
- of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or
federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial Information
(PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means" any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and
the regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" nieans an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of

a system for .the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, joss

Contractor Initials ^
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. DHHS Information Security Requirements

or misplacernent of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
mai), ail of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized access,
use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information Technology
or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by means of the
State, to transmit) will be considered an open network and not adequately secure for
the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their namOi social security number, personal
information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C;t9, biomelric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection.of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information* means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the
American National Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Contractor Initials
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2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a request
for disiclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena, etc.,
without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or object to
the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI-
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation' of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
■  any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives of
DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing Confidential
Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have been evaluated
by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said application's encryption
capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if email
is encrvpted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of persons
authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential Data, the
secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure. SSL encrypts
data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file hosting
services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via cert/ffed ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

1. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit Confidential Data
said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

.Contractor Iniliab
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8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when remotely
transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to access
or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be installed on the End
User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If End
User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will structure the
Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. SFTP
folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24-hour
auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such lime, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the. data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted under
this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also ap'ply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
to detect potential security events that can impact Stale of NH systems and/or
department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and. hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral,
antihacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and antl-malware utilities. The environment, as
a whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

Conlracior Iniilals
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6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its sub
contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for securely
disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will obtain written
certification for,any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the Contractor or
any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of New
Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in
accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing)
as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88. Rev, 1. Guidelines for Media
Sanitization. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S. Department of
Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at time of the data
destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department upon request.
The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data has
been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly evaluated tjy the
State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract.
Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a secure
method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract.
Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data by means
of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under -this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential
information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted
services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential
information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation,
transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to
store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

.  / 08
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In place to detect
potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or Department
confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End Users
in support of protecting Department confidential.lnformation.

6. If the Contractor will be sut>-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those for
the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
. State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department systemfs). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department arid is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life , of the Contractor engagement. The sun/ey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior
express written consent is obtained frorri the Information Security Office leadership
member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make
efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent

— 05
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future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
'  costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the

breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects maintain
the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less than the level
and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, Including, but not limited to,
provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS Privacy Act Regulations
(45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that
govern protections for individually identifiable health information and as applicable
under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to prevent
unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and scope of
security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements established
by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology. Refer to
Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm for the
Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the State's Security
Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section
VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that
connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this Contract

to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform their official
duties in' connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, implemented
to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS under this Contract
from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

'  b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.
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d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and t>eing sent
to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive such
information.

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and Individually Identifiable
data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that is physically and
technologically secure from access by unauthorized, persons during duty hours
as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all limes when in transit, at rest, or when stored
on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and disclosed
using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared, with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. OHMS
resen/es the right to conduct onsite Inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, and other
applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is disposed
of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any Security
Incidents and Breaches Immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
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4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents and
determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, If so. identify appropriate Breach
notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different options, and
bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as applicable.

in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov B.

DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformati6nSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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